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FORM 1-SA
SEMIANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO REGULAITON A
For the fiscal semiannual period ended June 30, 2022
For
EVOLVEX EQUITY FUND, LLC
A Colorado Company
L.R.S. EIN: 871153667
Evolvex Equity Fund, LL.C
7491 Kline Drive
Arvada, CO 80005
Phone: 720-739-3009

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following is a statement by the management regarding the period of January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022.
The following balance sheets were prepared by the Company.

Item 1. Plan of Operations

Revenue/Net Loss from Operating Activities

For the 6-month periods ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, respectively, the net income for the Company
decreased, from $0.00 to -$24,540, representing a difference of -$24,540 due to costs related to setting up the
fund, which had not yet started operations. For the same periods, the Company's net loss increased from $0.00 to
$24,540, a difference of $24,540. These losses are due to the Company spending on fund marketing and broker-
dealer fees for the purpose of marketing the fund and fund oversight and administration.

Operating Expenses

Operating Expenses increased from $0.00 to $24,540, a difference of $24,540 due to fund marketing, oversight
and administration.

Salaries and benefits
Salaries and benefits for the 6-month periods ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2022, respectively, remained

unchanged at $0.00, as there are no paid employees currently.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
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As of June 30, 2022, the Company had cash of $5,118.12, and total assets of $42,618.12. On June 30, 2021, the
Company had cash of $40,000 and total assets of $40,000. This represents a decrease of $34,882 (or 87.2%) in
cash and an increase of $2,618.12 (or 6.5%) in total assets.

Item 2. Other Information

There is no information required to be disclosed under Item 2 of the Form 1-SA

EvolveX Equity Fund

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2021 — June 30, 2022

June 30, June 30,
2021 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
EvolveX Equity Fund (4353) -1 40,000.00 5,118.12
Total Bank Accounts $ 40,000.00 $ 5,118.12
Total Current Assets $ 40,000.00 $ 5,118.12
Other Assets
Organization Costs 37,500.00
Total Other Assets $ 37,500.00
TOTAL ASSETS $ 40,000.00 42,618.12
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term loans from partners 0.00 0.00
Note Payable — Schley 40,000.00 63,158.12
Total Long-term loans from partners 40,000.00 63,158.12
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 40,000.00 $ 63,158.12
Total Liabilities $ 40,000.00
Equity
Opening balance equity 0.00
Partner investments 4,000.00
Retained Earnings 0.00 0.00
Net Income 0.00 -24,540.00
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Total Equity 0.00 $ -20,540.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $  40,000.00 $  42,618.12

EvolveX Equity Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
January — June, 2021 - January — June, 2022

January — June January — June
2021 2022
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income 0.00 -24,540.00
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by 0.00 0.00
operations:
Long-term loans from partners: Note Payable — Schley 40,000.00 25,000.00
Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash 40,000.00 25,000.00
provided by operations:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 40,000.00 $ 460.00
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Opening balance equity — 0.00
Partner investments — 4,000.00
Net cash provided by financing activities — $ 4,000.00
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 40,000.00 —
NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ 40,000.00 $ 4,460.00
Cash at beginning of period — 658.12
CASH AT END OF PERIOD $ 40,000.00 $ 5,118.12
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EvolveX Equity Fund

Profit and Loss Comparison
January — June, 2022

Income

Total Income
GROSS PROFIT
Expenses
Advertising and Marketing
Commissions & fees
Broker-Dealer Fees
Total Commissions & fees
General business expenses
Bank Service Charges
Total General business expenses
Legal and Accounting
Total Expenses
NET OPERATING INCOME
NET INCOME

JAN — JUN,

2022

8,000.00

&L

Note A — Nature of Business and Organization

0.00

12,500.00
0.00
8,000.00

0.00
40.00
40.00

4,000.00

24,540.00

-24,540.00

-24,540.00

JAN - JUN,
2021 (PY)

&L

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC. (“the Company”) was organized in June 2021 in the State of Colorado. Our primary
business is the high-quality management of real estate investment funds. Our strategy is to create funds that will
primarily focus on short-term vacation rental properties in emerging markets throughout the United States and

Internationally.

Note B — Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
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The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of less than three months to be
cash and cash equivalents. The Company places its temporary cash investments with high quality financial
institutions. At times, such investments may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The Company does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Colorado and has elected to be treated
as a partnership for federal tax reporting purposes. As such, the Company does not pay federal or state income
taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the income is passed through to the members. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Company recognizes and discloses uncertain tax
positions in accordance with GAAP. The Company evaluated its tax positions and determined it has no uncertain
tax positions as of December 31, 2021. The Company’s tax returns are subject to income tax examinations
generally for a period of three years from the date of filing. The Company’s 2021 tax year is open for
examination for federal and state taxing authorities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Note C — Member’s Deficit

Member’s deficit consists of two classes of units, Class A units which are non-voting and Class B units have 1
vote per unit. At December 31, 2021 the Company had 50,000 Class A Units authorized and none outstanding
and the Company had 50,000 Class B Units authorized and none outstanding.

Note D — Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the
Company but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company’s
management and its legal counsel assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an
exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the
Company or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Company’s legal counsel evaluates the
perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of
relief sought or expected to be sought therein.

If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the
amount of the liability can be estimated, then the estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial
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statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss contingency is not probable, but is
reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together
with an estimate of the range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed.

COVID-19

Management has concluded that the COVID-19 outbreak in 2020 may have a significant impact on business in
general, but the potential impact on the Company is not currently measurable. Due to the level of risk this virus
has had on the global economy, it is at least reasonably possible that it could have an impact on the operations of
the Company in the near term that could materially impact the Company’s financials. Management has not been
able to measure the potential financial impact on the Company but will review commercial and federal financing
options should the need arise.

Note E — Subsequent Events

Management has assessed subsequent events through June 30, 2022, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Index

Exhibit 2A: Certificate of Formation
Exhibit 2B: Operating Agreement
Exhibit 4: Subscription Agreement
Exhibit 8: Draft Escrow Agreement
Exhibit 11: Accountant’s Consent

SIGNATURES
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Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it
meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 1-A and has duly caused this Offering Statements to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Arvada, CO on September 27, 2022

ISSUER COMPANY LEGAL NAME AND ADDRESS:

EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC
7491 Kline Drive
Arvada, CO 80005

This Offering Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

s/: Rodman Schley
Rodman Schley, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company

Date: September 27, 2022
Location Signed: City of Arvada, CO

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

OPERATING AGREEMENT OF
EVOLVEX EQUITY FUND, LLC
a Colorado limited liability company

This Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”) of EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC (the “Company”)
effective as of June 9, 2021, is made and entered into by and between EvolveX Capital, LLC (the “Manager*)
and the parties who from time to time are admitted as Members of the Company.

The Manager and Members hereby (i) ratify and in all respects confirm the formation of the Company
under the laws of Colorado pursuant to the Articles of Organization filed with the office of the Secretary of State
of Colorado on June 9, 2021, (i1) confirm that the Company has never had a written Operating Agreement (iii)
acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall supersede any oral agreements of the parties related in any
respect to the Company, and (iv) agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

“Affiliate” of a Person means any other Person that directly or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. The term “control”
(including the terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”) means the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

“Applicable Law” means all applicable provisions of (a) constitutions, treaties, statutes, laws (including
the common law), rules, regulations, decrees, ordinances, codes, proclamations, declarations or orders of any
Governmental Authority; (b) any consents or approvals of any Governmental Authority; and (c) any orders,
decisions, advisory or interpretative opinions, injunctions, judgments, awards, decrees of or agreements with,
any Governmental Authority.

“Assets” or “Company Assets” means any and all assets of the Company including interests in real
property, mortgages, loans, notes, contracts, receivables, cash, or any other asset of the Company, tangible or
intangible.

“Asset Acquisition Fee” means a one percent (1%) fee payable to the Manager or a designated Affiliate
of the Manager for the acquisition of each Asset by the Company, payable at the closing of the Asset acquisition.

“Asset Disposition Fee” means a one percent (1%) fee payable to the Manager or a designated Affiliate
of the Manager on the disposition (meaning the sale, transfer, assignment, or other conveyance) of any Company
Asset by the Company, payable at the closing of the Asset disposition.

“Asset Management Fee” means a one percent (1%) fee payable to the Manager or a designated
Affiliate of the Manager on the total amount of Capital Contributions received by the Company (less the
allocable portion of Capital Contributions allocated to any Company Asset

subject to a Capital Transaction). For the avoidance of doubt, the first day of the first month following the date
on which a Capital Transaction occurs will be when the Asset Management Fee will begin to be calculated
based on the total Capital Contributions less the allocable portion of the Capital Contributions attributable to the
Capital Transaction.

“Capital Contribution” means, for any Member, the total amount of cash and cash equivalents and the
Book Basis of any property contributed to the Company by such Member. For Class A Members, the amount of

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

such Class A Member’s Capital Contribution shall be reflected on the written Subscription Agreement between
the Company and such Class A Member in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

“Capital Transaction” means a sale, condemnation, exchange or casualty not followed by
reconstruction, or other disposition, whether by foreclosure or otherwise, of any Company Assets.

“Class A Member” shall mean any Person holding Class A Units who has been approved by the
Manager.

“Class A Units” shall mean Units in the Company purchased by Members pursuant to a Subscription
Agreement. There shall be 50,000 Class A Units each representing an original Capital Contribution of One
Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) for an aggregate of Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000.00).

“Class B Member” shall mean EvolveX Capital, LLC.

“Class B Units” shall mean Units in the Company held by the Class B Member. There shall be 50,000
Class B Units each representing a Capital Contribution of 1/1000 Dollar ($0.001) for a total of Fifty Dollars
($50.00).

“Closing” is defined as the acceptance of Subscription Agreements at time periods designated at the sole
discretion of the Manager.

“Credit Facility” or “Facility” means any line of credit, note obligation, advance, warehouse lines, and/
or individual loans from any lender, secured in first position by one or more of the Company Assets.

“Distributable Cash” means, for any period, the total cash gross receipts of the Company during
such period (i) derived from all sources (other than Capital Contributions, Capital Transactions and Refinance
Transactions) together with any amounts included in reserves or working capital from prior periods which the
Manager reasonably determines to distribute, less the operating expenses of the Company paid during such
period (including, but not limited to, present and anticipated debts and obligations under any Credit Facility or
otherwise, capital needs and expenses, the payment of any management or administrative fees and expenses,
including without limitation, the fees discussed under Section 18(d) and reasonable reserves for contingencies)
and any increases or replacements in reserves (other than from Capital Contributions) during such period
(“Distributable Cash from Operations™), (ii) in the case of a Capital Transaction, the total cash gross receipts
of the Company attributable to such Capital Transaction, less (A) payment of all expenses associated with such
Capital Transaction and (B) repayment of all secured and unsecured Company debts required to be paid in
connection with

such Capital Transaction or that the Members unanimously determine should be paid in connection with such
Capital Transaction (“Distributable Cash from Capital Transactions™) and (ii1) in the case of a Refinancing
Transaction, the total cash gross proceeds of the Company attributable to such Refinancing Transaction,
less payment of all expenses and funding of any reserves in connection with such Refinance Transaction
(“Distributable Cash from Refinance Transactions”).
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“Distributions” means a distribution made by the Company to a Member (when in cash or otherwise)
with respect to such Member’s Units, including a distribution of Distributable Cash from Operations,
Distributable Cash from Capital Transactions, or Distributable Cash from Refinancing Transactions, as
applicable; provided, that none of the following shall be a Distribution: (a) any redemption or repurchase by the
Company or any Member of any Units; (b) any recapitalization or exchange of securities of the Company; (c)
any subdivision (by a split of Units or otherwise) or any combination (by a reverse split of Units or otherwise)
of any outstanding Units; or (d) any fees or remuneration paid to any Member in such Member’s capacity as
a service provider for the Company or a Company Affiliate. “Distribute” when used as a verb shall have a
correlative meaning.

“Effective Date” shall mean the date of transfer of a Class A Member’s Capital Contribution from the
Subscription Account into the Company’s operating account and the Company’s acceptance of the Member’s
Subscription Agreement, which shall first occur on the date of the Initial Closing, and upon each Closing after
the Initial Closing up to and including the Final Closing.

“Final Closing” is defined as the date of the earliest to occur of the following (a) the Company, in the
Manager’s sole discretion, elects to no longer accept Capital Contributions; or
(b) the date upon which 50,000 Class A Units have been sold.

“Governmental Authority” means any federal, state, local or foreign government or political
subdivision thereof, or any agency or instrumentality of such government or political subdivision, or any self-
regulated organization or other non-governmental regulatory authority or quasi-governmental authority (to the
extent that the rules, regulations or orders of such organization or authority have the force of law), or any
arbitrator, court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction.

“Initial Closing” means the first Closing on which a Class A Member is admitted to the Company,
which shall occur once 1,000 Class A Units are sold by the Company.

“Managed Real Estate” shall mean any real estate owned or managed by the Company. “Member”
shall mean any Person holding Units who has been approved by the Manager. “Ownership Interest”

means, for each Class A Member, that percentage which is obtained

by dividing the number of Class A Units held by such Class A Member by the total of all Class A Units held by
all Class A Members.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company,
Governmental Authority, unincorporated organization, trust, association or other entity.

“Preferred Return” shall mean an eight percent (8%) annual, non-compounding return of a Class A
Member’s Capital Contribution. The Preferred Return is cumulative, meaning that if the Preferred Return is not
paid in full in any annual period, the amount of the Preferred Return that was not paid in such annual period
shall carry forward to the next annual period until paid in full. The Preferred Return applicable to a Member
shall be calculated based on the number of days in an applicable annual period that a Class A Member holds
Class A Units.

“Refinancing Transaction” means the refinancing or restructuring of a line of credit, note, obligation,
advance, warehouse line, loan or other debt obligation under any Credit Facility.
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2. Name. The name of the limited liability company organized hereby is EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC,
or such other name as the Manager from time to time may determine, and all business of the Company shall be
conducted in such name and/or such other trade name as the Manager shall determine. Upon the termination of
the Company, all of the Company’s right, title and interest in and to the use of the name “EvolveX Equity Fund,
LLC” and any variation thereof, including any name to which the name of the Company may be changed, shall
become the property of the Manager, and the Members shall have no right to, and no interest in, the use of any
such name.

3. Purpose: Powers. The Company was formed for the object and purpose of, and the nature of the
business to be conducted and promoted by the Company is to purchase, hold, dispose of, or otherwise deal
with Company Assets for its own account, and to otherwise engage in any lawful act or activity for which
limited liability companies may be formed under the Colorado Limited Liability Company Act, C.R.S. Sections
7-80-101, et. seq. (the “Act”) related thereto. In furtherance of its purposes, but subject to all of the provisions
of this Agreement, the Company shall have the power and is hereby authorized to do such things and engage
in such activities related to the foregoing as may be necessary, convenient, or incidental to the conduct of the
business of the Company, and have and exercise all of the powers and rights conferred upon limited liability
companies formed pursuant to the Act.

4. Principal Office. The address of the principal office of the Company is 7491 Kline Drive, Arvada,
CO, 80005. The Company may locate its office at any other place or places as the Manager may from time to
time deem advisable.

5. Registered Agent and Registered Office. The Company shall at all times maintain a registered
agent and a registered office in the State of Colorado as provided in the Act. Until changed by the Manager in
accordance with this Agreement and the Act, the registered agent of the Company shall be the Company.

6. Term. The Company shall continue in existence in perpetuity from the date the Articles of
Organization were filed with the office of the Secretary of State of Colorado, unless the Company is dissolved
earlier in accordance with Section 28.

7. Limited Liability. Except as otherwise provided by the Act, the debts, obligations, and liabilities of
the Company, whether arising in contract, tort, or otherwise, shall be solely the

debts, obligations, and liabilities of the Company, and the Members shall not be obligated personally for any
such debt, obligation, or liability of the Company solely by reason of being a Member of the Company.

8. Members. The Company shall have two (2) classes of Members: Class A Members and the Class
B Member. Each such class of Members shall have the rights, powers, duties, obligations, preferences and
privileges set forth in this Agreement.

(a) At any time prior to the Final Closing, the Manager mayj, in its sole discretion, admit one or
more Persons to the Company as Members. A Person shall be admitted to the Company as a Member (and be
shown as such in the books and records of the Company) upon execution and delivery by such Person of this
Agreement (or a Joinder Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A) and a Subscription
Agreement (in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B) and the acceptance by the Manager of such
subscription in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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(b) At any time on or prior to the Final Closing, the Manager, in its sole discretion, may
schedule one or more Closings for the sale of Class A Units and cause the Company to admit Members or
permit existing Members to increase their Capital Contribution.

(¢) Contemporaneously with being admitted to the Company or increasing its Capital
Contribution, each Member shall make Capital Contributions to the Company in the amount of such
Member’s Capital Contribution.

9. Capital Structure: Voting Rights. The following provisions shall govern the capital structure of the
Company:

(a) Units. All membership interests in the Company shall be evidenced by units (“Units”),
which shall be divided into Class A Units and Class B Units. Each type, class or series of Units shall have the
privileges, preferences, duties, liabilities, obligations and rights, including voting rights, if any, set forth in this
Agreement with respect to such type, class or series. The Manager shall maintain a schedule of all Members,
their respective mailing addresses and the amount and series of Units held by each Member (the “Members
Schedule”) and shall update the Members Schedule upon the issuance or Transfer of any Units to any new or
existing Member. The Members Schedule shall be kept with the Company’s books and records and shall be
available for any Member’s review upon reasonable request. The Company will sell Class A Units at the price of
$1,000 per Class A Unit and there shall be a minimum investment amount of $10,000 for each Class A Member
and a maximum investment amount of $10,000,000 for each Class A Member, unless otherwise consented to
in writing by the Manager, such consent to be in the Manager’s sole and absolute discretion, and subject at all
times to Section 32. The Company shall not issue fractional Units.

(b) Certification of Units. The Manager may, in its sole discretion, but shall not be required
to, issue certificates to the Members representing the Units held by such Member.

(©) Voting. The Class A Units shall be non-voting Units, except as expressly set forth in
Section 17(d), Section 28(a), and Section 29(a), which in such cases, the Class A Units shall be entitled to one
vote per Class A Unit held of record on the Company’s books. The Class

B Units shall be entitled to one vote per Class B Unit held of record on the Company’s books as to matters that
come before the Members for a vote. Any transferee of Units who is not admitted as a substitute Member in
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall not be entitled to vote such Units and those
Units shall not be treated as outstanding in determining votes or approvals of the Members. For the purposes of
this Agreement, the term “Majority Interest” shall mean the Members holding at least a majority of the Units
entitled to vote; and the term “Supermajority Interest” shall mean the Members holding at least 75% of the
Units entitled to vote.

(d) Adoption of Agreement. Each Person acquiring Units from the Company in accordance
with this Agreement shall be admitted as a Member and shall, by executing and delivering to the Manager a copy
of this Agreement or a Joinder Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, shall accept, adopt and be
bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement, and such Person shall each execute and deliver such other
instruments as the Manager reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to effect, and as a condition to, such
acquisition of Units. Upon the amendment of the Members Schedule by the Manager and the satisfaction of any
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other applicable conditions, including, if a condition, the receipt by the Company of payment for the issuance
of the applicable Units, such Person shall be admitted as a Member and deemed listed as such on the books and
records of the Company and thereupon shall be issued his, her or its Units. The Manager shall also adjust the
Capital Accounts of the Members as necessary in accordance with Section 11.

10. Capital Contributions.

(a) Capital Contributions. In exchange for the issuance of the Class A Units specified in
each applicable Subscription Agreement (in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B), the Class A
Members agree to deliver to the Company the Capital Contribution set forth in such Subscription Agreement.
The Class B Member shall be issued the Class B Units in exchange for the Capital Contribution set forth
in this Agreement upon the execution of this Agreement. Upon receipt of the Class A Members’ Capital
Contributions, the Company will immediately deposit such Capital Contributions into its holding account (the
“Subscription Account”). Any investment in the Class A Units only becomes effective as an equity investment
as of the Effective Date, and the Manager shall deliver written notice to all Members upon the Effective
Date that such investment has become effective as an equity investment. Capital Contributions held in the
Subscription Account shall pay no interest to the applicable Member and shall confer no other rights upon the
applicable Member. If the Initial Closing does not occur prior to July 1, 2023, all Capital Contributions held in
the Subscription Account shall be returned in full immediately, without interest, and this Agreement and any
Subscription Agreements shall be void ab initio.

(b) Additional Capital Contributions and Loans. Except as provided in this Section 10(b),
no Member or Economic Interest holder (each may be referred to herein as an “Interest Holder”) shall be
required to make loans or additional Capital Contributions to the Company. At such time or times as the
Company requires additional capital to conduct the business of the Company, as determined by the Manager,
the Manager may elect to borrow money from banks, other lending institutions, Interest Holders, Affiliates of
Interest Holders, or other third parties upon such terms and with such security as the Manager determines is
reasonable and market

for such loans. Further, additional Capital Contributions may be necessary to accomplish the purposes and
objectives of the Company. Additional Capital Contributions may be made by the Members when determined
necessary by the Manager, from time to time, in the amounts determined by the approval of the Manager.
Such additional Capital Contributions shall be payable in proportion to each Class A Member’s Ownership
Interest. If the then current Class A Members are unable or unwilling to meet the demand for additional Capital
Contributions, the Class A Members acknowledge that new Members may be added at the time additional
capital is required on terms no more favorable than was offered to the existing Class A Members. The Class A
Members acknowledge that their Ownership Interest may change (including being diluted) from time to time
as a result of adding new Members to obtain additional Capital Contributions. In the event that one or more
Members is unable or unwilling to contribute such additional Capital Contributions, then the Manager may
amend this Agreement to admit new Members on terms no more favorable than was offered to the existing
Class A Members. However, this section is not for the benefit of any creditors of the Company. No creditor
of the Company may obtain any right under this paragraph to make any claim that a Member is obligated
to contribute capital to the Company for the purpose of satisfying the Company’s creditors. Such Member or
Members making additional Capital Contributions shall receive a Capital Account credit for each such additional
Capital Contribution at the time and in the amount that such Capital Contribution is made, and the Members
Schedule shall be adjusted accordingly as to the Ownership Interest for all Members. If a loan agreement is
negotiated with an Interest Holder, the loan shall be evidenced by a promissory note payable by the Company
in a form approved by the Manager. Any loan given by any Member to the Company shall not be considered
a Capital Contribution and shall not affect the maintenance of such Member’s Capital Account. The loan shall
be repaid by the Company to the Interest Holder, with unpaid interest, if any, according to the terms of the
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note. Such interest and repayment of the amounts so loaned are to be entitled to priority of payment over the
Distributions to Interest Holders with respect to their Units. Loans by any Interest Holder to the Company shall
not be considered Capital Contributions to the Company.

11. Capital Accounts. The Company shall maintain for each Member a separate capital account
(“Capital Account”) in accordance with the rules prescribed pursuant to Section 704 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the Treasury Regulations (the “Treasury Regulations”)
promulgated thereunder, including but not limited to Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv). The
Capital Accounts are maintained for the sole purpose of allocating items of income, gain, loss and deduction
among the Members and shall have no effect on the amount of any Distributions to any Members, in liquidation
or otherwise.

12. Book Basis. The book basis (“Book Basis”) of an Asset of the Company shall mean the Asset’s
adjusted tax basis, as determined for federal income tax purposes; provided, however, that (i) if property is
contributed to the capital of the Company, the initial Book Basis of such property shall be its fair market value on
the date of contribution, as determined in good faith by the Manager; (ii) if the Capital Accounts of the Company
are adjusted (at the discretion of the Manager) pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f)
to reflect the fair market value of the Company’s Assets, the Book Basis of each such Asset shall be adjusted
to equal its fair market value, as determined in good faith by the Manager as of the time of such adjustment
in accordance with such Regulation; and (iii) the Book Basis of all Assets shall be adjusted thereafter by
depreciation and amortization as provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704- 1(b)(2)(iv)(g).

13. No Interest. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, no interest shall be paid by
the Company on Capital Contributions, balances in Member’s Capital Accounts or any other funds contributed
to the Company or Distributed or Distributable by the Company under this Agreement.

14. No Withdrawal: Return of Contribution. No Member shall have the right to withdraw any portion
of such Member’s Capital Account without the consent of the Manager. Except as required by the Act, no
Member shall be personally liable to any other Member for the return of any Capital Contributions (or any
additions thereto), it being agreed that any return of capital as may be made from time to time shall be made
solely from the Assets of the Company and only in accordance with the terms hereof.

15. Allocations of Profits and Losses.

(a) Allocations of Profits and Losses. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 15, all
income, loss, deductions and credits, and each and every item thereof, of the Company shall be allocated among
the Members in a manner such that, after giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Section 15(c), the
Capital Account balance of each Member, immediately after making such allocations, is, as nearly as possible,
equal to (i) the Distributions that would be made to such Member pursuant to Section 29(c) if the Company were
dissolved, its affairs wound up and its Assets sold for cash equal to their book value, all Company liabilities
were satisfied (limited with respect to each nonrecourse liability (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.704-2(b)(3)) to the book value of the Assets securing such liability), and the net assets of the Company
were distributed, in accordance with Section 29(c), to the Members immediately after making such allocations,
minus (i1) such Member’s share of partnership minimum gain or partner nonrecourse debt minimum gain (within
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the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2), computed immediately prior to the hypothetical sale of
assets.

(b) Value of Contributions. In accordance with Section 704(c) of the Code and the applicable
Treasury Regulations thereunder, income, gain, loss, deduction, and tax depreciation with respect to any property
which has a Book Basis different from its adjusted basis as determined for federal income tax purposes shall,
solely for income tax purposes (and without adjusting any Member’s Capital Account therefor), be allocated
among the Members so as to take into account any variation between the adjusted tax basis of such property to
the Company and the Book Basis of such property.

() Special Allocations. The following special allocations shall, except as otherwise
provided, be made in the following order:

(1) Except as otherwise provided in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(f),
notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 15, if there is a net decrease in partnership minimum gain or
partner nonrecourse debt minimum gain (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2) during
any taxable period, items of income and gain for such taxable period (and, if necessary, subsequent taxable
periods) shall be allocated among the Members in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(d),
1.704-2(f), 1.704-2(g) and 1.704-2(i). The items to be so allocated, and the order in which such items must be
allocated, shall be determined in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(j)(2). This Section

15(c)(i) is intended to comply with the minimum gain chargeback requirements set forth in Treasury
Regulations Section 1.704-2 and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(i1) If any Member unexpectedly receives an adjustment, allocation, or distribution
described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(i1)(d)(4), (5) or (6), then items of income and gain shall
be specifically allocated to such Member in accordance with the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section
1.704-1(b)(2)(i1)(d). This Section 15(c)(ii) is intended to comply with the “qualified income offset” provision of
the Regulation last cited and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(111) Nonrecourse deductions (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section
1.704-2(b)(1)) for any fiscal year or other period shall be allocated among the Members under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.704-2(e) in accordance with the Members’ respective Units.

(iv) Any partner nonrecourse deduction (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.704-2(1)) for any period shall be allocated to the Member that potentially bears an economic risk
of loss with respect to the partner nonrecourse debt (within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section
1.704-2(b)(4)) to which such partner nonrecourse deductions are attributable, all in accordance with the
principles of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(1)(1) and (2).

(d) If any interest in the Company is transferred, or upon the admission or withdrawal of a
Member, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, the income or loss attributable to such interest
in the Company for such calendar year shall be divided and allocated ratably between the Members on a daily
basis.

(e) Any “excess nonrecourse liabilities” (as defined in Treasury Regulations Section
1.752-3(a)(3)) shall be allocated among the Members in accordance with their respective Units.

® To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Company Asset pursuant
to Code Section 734(b) or Code Section 743(b) is required, pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section
1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts, the amount of such adjustment

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

to the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain or loss and such gain or loss shall be specially
allocated to the Members in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m).

(2) The terms and provisions of the Treasury Regulations promulgated under Section 704 of
the Code are deemed incorporated herein by reference.

(h) The parties intend that the foregoing tax allocation provisions of this Section 15 shall
produce final Capital Account balances of the Members that will permit liquidating Distributions that are made
in accordance with Section 29(c) to conform to the Distributions in accordance with Section 16 hereof. To the
extent that the tax allocation provisions of this Section 15 and Section 29(c) would fail to produce such final
Capital Account balances (a) such provisions shall be amended by the Manager if and to the extent necessary
to produce such result and (b) income and taxable loss of the Company for prior open years (or items of gross
income and

deduction of the Company for such years) shall be reallocated by the Manager among the Members to the
extent it is not possible to achieve such result with allocations of items of income (including gross income) and
deduction for the current year and future years, as approved by the Manager. The Manager shall have the power
to amend this Agreement without the consent of the Members, as it reasonably considers advisable, to make the
allocations and adjustments described in this Section 15(h).

16. Distributions. Other than Distributions pursuant to a dissolution of the Company in accordance with
Sections 28 and 29, Distributions shall be made to the Members at the times and in the aggregate amounts
determined by the Manager (based upon the available cash of the Company, as determined from time to time
by the Manager). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, subject to the Company’s performance and
sufficient cash flow, the Manager intends to calculate and distribute any available Distributable Cash on at least
an annual basis. Such Distributions shall be made to the Members as follows:

(a) Operating Distributions. Distributable Cash from Operations shall be Distributed

as follows:

(1) Distributable Cash from Operations shall be Distributed 100% to the Class A
Members until each Class A Member receives its applicable Preferred Return; and

(i1) Thereafter, Distributable Cash from Operations shall be Distributed 80%
to the Class A Members (pro ratably in accordance with their Ownership Interest) and 20% to the Class
B Member.

(b) Capital Transactions and Refinancing Transactions. Distributable Cash from Capital
Transactions and Distributable Cash from Refinancing Transactions shall be distributed in the following
order of priority:

(1) Distributable Cash from Capital Transactions and Distributable Cash from
Refinancing Transactions shall be distributed 100% to the Class A Members until each Class A Member
receives its applicable Preferred Return; then
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(i1) Distributable Cash from Capital Transactions and Distributable Cash from
Refinancing Transactions shall be distributed 100% to the Class A Members until each Class A Member has
been repaid its Capital Contribution; and thereafter

(111) Distributable Cash from Capital Transactions and Distributable Cash from
Refinancing Transactions shall be distributed 80% to the Class A Members (pro ratably in accordance with
their Ownership Interest) and 20% to the Class B Member.

(iv) At the sole discretion of the Manager, Distributable Cash from Capital
Transactions and Distributable Cash from Refinancing Transactions may be reinvested into other Assets and
such amounts shall not at such time be Distributable under this Section 16(b) or accrue any Preferred Return

under this Section 16(b).

(c) Withholding from Distributions. To the extent that the Company is required by
Applicable Law to withhold or to make tax or other payments on behalf of or with respect to any Member,
the Company may withhold such amounts from any Distribution and

make such payments as so required. For purposes of this Agreement, any such payments or withholdings shall
be treated as a Distribution to the Member on behalf of whom the withholding or payment was made.

17. Designation of Manager.

(a) Manager. The Company shall be managed by one manager. The initial manager shall
be EvolveX Capital, LLC. Except as otherwise provided by the Act or the Articles of Organization, each
Manager, including a Manager elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until his or her death, resignation, court
declaration of incompetence, or dissolution.

(b) Removal. The Manager may not be removed by the Members.

(©) Resignation. The Manager may voluntarily resign from the Company upon one hundred
and eighty (180) days’ prior written notice to the Members.

(d) Vacancies. Upon the death, resignation, court declaration of incompetence, or dissolution
of a Manager, a new Manager may be appointed by the Class A Members holding a Majority Interest. Any
Management Fee (as defined below) that has accrued as of the date of such death, resignation, court declaration
of incompetence, or dissolution of a Manager shall be an accrued liability of the Company, owed to the Manager
or the Managers heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, as applicable.

18. Management.

(a) Authority and Decisions. Except as otherwise provided herein, the business and affairs of
the Company shall be directed and managed by the Manager and the Manager shall have full, complete, sole, and
exclusive authority, power and discretion to make any and all decisions with respect thereto. Without limiting
the foregoing, the Manager shall have the authority, power, and discretion to do the following:
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(1) to manage, maintain, control and otherwise provide for the day-to- day operation
of the Assets of the Company;

(i1) to manage, control, invest, reinvest, acquire or purchase, lease or otherwise sell,
contract to purchase or sell, grant, obtain, or exercise options to purchase, options to sell or conversion rights,
assign, transfer, convey, deliver, endorse, exchange, pledge, mortgage, abandon, improve, repair, maintain,
insure, lease for any term and otherwise deal with any and all Company Assets of whatsoever kind and nature,
and wheresoever situated, in furtherance of the purposes of the Company;

(111) to employ, engage, contract with, or dismiss from employment or engagement
Persons to the extent deemed necessary by the Manager for the operation and management of the Company’s
business, including but not limited to consultants, accountants, attorneys, insurance brokers, and others;

(iv) to enter into contracts on behalf of the Company and to perform or cause to be
performed by power of attorney or otherwise all of the Company’s obligations;

v) to loan the Company’s money and execute and deliver instruments and
documents and accept payments in connection therewith;

(vi) to borrow money, procure loans and advances from any Person for Company
purposes, and to apply for and secure, from any Person, credit for accommodations; to contract liabilities and
obligations, direct, or contingent and of every kind and nature with or without security; and to repay, discharge,
settle, adjust, compromise, or liquidate any such loan, advance, credit, obligation or liability;

(vil)  to pledge, hypothecate, mortgage, assign, deposit, deliver, or otherwise give as
security or as additional or substitute security, or for sale or other disposition any and all Company Assets,
tangible or intangible, and to make substitutions thereof, and to receive any proceeds thereof upon the release or
surrender thereof; to sign, execute and deliver and receive written agreements, undertakings and instruments of
every kind and nature; to give oral instructions and make oral agreements; and generally to do any and all other
acts and things incidental to any of the foregoing or with reference to any dealings or transactions which any
attorney may deem necessary, proper or advisable;

(vii)  to acquire and enter into any contract of insurance which the Manager deem
necessary or appropriate for the protection of the Company, for the conservation of the Company’s Assets or for
any purpose convenient or beneficial to the Company;

(ix) to conduct any and all banking transactions on behalf of the Company; to adjust
and settle checking, savings, and other accounts which such institutions as the Manager shall deem appropriate;
to draw, sign, execute, accept, endorse, guarantee, deliver, receive and pay any checks, drafts, bills of exchange,
acceptances, notes, obligations, undertakings and other instruments for or relating to the payment, of money in,
into, or from any account in the Company’s name; to execute, procure, consent to and authorize extensions and
renewals of the same; to make deposits and withdraw the same and to negotiate or discount commercial paper,
acceptances, negotiable instruments, bills of exchange and dollar drafts;

(x) to demand, sue for, receive, and otherwise take steps to collect or recover all
debt, rents, proceeds, interests, dividends, goods, chattels, income from property, damages and all other property,
to which the Company may be entitled or which are or may become due the Company from any Person; to
commence, prosecute or enforce, or to defend, answer or oppose, contest, and abandon all legal proceedings in
which the Company is or may hereafter be interested; and to settle, compromise, or submit to arbitration any
accounts, debts, claims, disputes and matters which may arise between the Company and any other Person and
to grant an extension of time for the payment or satisfaction thereof on any terms, with or without security;
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(x1) to make arrangements for financing, including the taking of all actions deemed
necessary or appropriate by the Manager to cause any approved loans to be closed;

(xii)  to take all reasonable measures necessary to insure compliance by the Company
with applicable arrangements, and other contractual obligations and arrangements entered into by the Company
from time to time in accordance with the provisions of this

Agreement, including periodic reports as required to lenders and using all due diligence to insure that the
Company is in compliance with its contractual obligations;

(xi11) to maintain the Company’s books of account and records; and

(xiv)  to prepare and deliver, or cause to be prepared and delivered by the Company’s
accountants, all financial and other reports with respect to the operations of the Company, and preparation and
filing of all federal and state tax returns and reports.

(b) No Authority to Members. No Member shall have the power to act for or bind the
Company as all such power is being vested exclusively in the Manager. Except as otherwise provided herein, to
the extent the duties of the Manager require expenditures of funds to be paid to third parties, the Manager shall
not have any obligations hereunder except to the extent that Company funds are reasonably available to them for
the performance of such duties, and nothing herein contained shall be deemed to require the Manager, in their
capacity as such, to expend individual funds for payment to third parties or to undertake any individual liability
or obligation on behalf of the Company.

(c) Delegation to Officers. Any action that otherwise may be taken by the Manager may be
taken by an officer of the Company to the extent authority for such action has been delegated to such officer by
the Manager (either specifically or under a general delegation of authority).

(d) Fees and Additional Compensation to Manager and Affiliates. The Manager or its
designated Affiliates shall receive:

(1) The Asset Management Fee, which shall be paid no more frequently than
monthly, or at such later time, in arrears, at the sole discretion of the Manager;

(i1) The Asset Acquisition Fee, which shall be based on the purchase price of the
Asset in question and shall be payable at the closing of the acquisition of each Company Asset, or at such later
time, in arrears, as the Manager may determine in its sole discretion;

(111) The Asset Disposition Fee, which shall be based on the sale price of the Asset in
question and shall be payable at the closing of the disposition of each Company Asset, or at such later time, in
arrears, as the Manager may determine in its sole discretion;

(iv) In the event the Manager or an Affiliate of the Manager shall provide property
management services for any Managed Real Estate, then the Company shall pay to the Manager a monthly
fee (“Property Management Fee”) equal to the market rate that is reasonable and not in excess of the
customary property management fee which would be paid to an independent third party property manager in
connection with such property management. The Property Management Fee shall be payable in the ordinary
course consistent with industry standards within the geographic community in which the Managed Real Estate
is located;
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) In the event that any Managed Real Estate undergoes any construction or
renovation, the Company shall pay to the Manager a fee (the “Construction Management Fee”) equal to the
greater of three percent (3%) of the budgeted construction and

improvements costs for each such construction project or market rate. The Manager shall provide the Company
with a written budget for each such project with a reasonable and customary itemization of costs. The
Construction Management Fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the completion of the applicable
construction project. If the Manager or an Affiliate of the Manager provides general contractor services with
respect to such construction or renovation as discussed in this Section 18(d)(v), the Manager shall be entitled to
an additional fee that is reasonable and not in excess of the customary general contractor fee which would be
paid to an independent third party general contractor in connection with such construction or renovation;

(vi) If the Manager shall act in the capacity of real estate broker (e.g. as a buyer’s
or seller’s agent in the purchase or sale of any real estate) the Manager may be paid a customary real estate
brokerage fee that is reasonable and not in excess of the customary real estate brokerage commission fee which
would be paid to an independent third party real estate broker in connection with such representation; and

(vii) The Manager shall be entitled to receive, out of Company funds available
therefor, reimbursement of all amounts reasonably expended by the Manager or its Affiliates out of its own funds
in payment of properly incurred Company obligations including but not limited to: (a) all expenses of organizing
the Company and offering the Units, including legal, accounting, consulting and tax advice; (b) costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the Manager’s performance of its duties, such as costs paid to professional
service providers; and (c) marketing costs in connection with the offering and sale of the Units, including
any and all registration and filing fees, sales commissions, or any other amount payable to any Governmental
Authority in connection therewith. Reimbursements pursuant to this Section shall not be duplicative of payments
under any other provision of this Agreement or any other agreement.

(viii)) In the event there are insufficient Company funds to pay the Manager any fee
then due under this Section 18 (a “Management Fee”), the Manager in its sole discretion may cause such
Management Fee to be accrued and paid at such time(s) as the Company has sufficient funds or upon the
liquidation of the Company. Any unpaid Management Fee shall be an accrued liability of the Company.

19. Officers. Officers of the Company may be appointed from time to time by the Manager. No officer
need be a Member. Any officers so designated shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Manager
may, from time to time, delegate to them. The Manager may assign titles to particular officers and, unless
the Manager decides otherwise, if the title is one commonly used for officers of a Colorado corporation, the
assignment of such title shall constitute the delegation to such officer of the authority and duties that are
normally associated with that office, subject to any specific delegation of authority and duties made to such
officer by the Manager and subject to all standards of care and restrictions applicable to the officers of a
Colorado corporation under Applicable Law. Each officer shall hold office until his successor is duly designated
and qualified or until his death or until he resigns or is removed by the Manager with or without cause. Any
number of offices may be held by the same person.

20. Company Meetings.
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(a) Company Meetings. No meetings of the Members shall be required to be held. Meetings
of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may only be called by the
Manager or the Class B Member. The affirmative vote of the Class B Member shall be the act of the Members.
Members may participate in any meeting by conference telephone or similar communications equipment by
means of which all Persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation by such means in
such meeting shall constitute attendance and presence in person at such meeting. Unless otherwise agreed by the
Members, the Manager shall preside over all meetings of the Members.

(b) Actions Without Meetings. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of
the Members may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice, and without a vote, if a consent or consents
in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the Class B Member. Every written consent shall
bear the date of signature of each Member who signs the consent. A photographic, photostatic, facsimile, or
similar reproduction of a writing actually signed and delivered by a Member shall be regarded as signed by
the Member for purposes of this Section 20. Prompt notice of the taking of any action by Members without a
meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be given by the Company to those Members who did not
consent in writing to the action; provided, however, that the Company shall not be prohibited from taking the
action so approved pending or following the delivery of such notice.

21. Other Business. The Manager and Members and any Affiliate of the Manager or Members may
engage in or possess an interest in other business ventures (unconnected with the Company) of every kind and
description, independently or with others. None of the Company or the other Members shall have any rights in
or to such independent ventures or the income or profits therefrom by virtue of this Agreement.

22. Confidential Information.

(a) The term “Confidential Information” shall mean certain information and materials
related to and that are unique to the Company, not already well known or reasonably discoverable upon
research by a person outside of the Company, including trade secrets as defined by Colorado law (whether in
paper or electronic form, or contained in any of the
Member’s memory, or otherwise stored or recorded). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
“Confidential Information” shall specifically include all information concerning (i) the marketing,
distribution, and sales of the Assets and any and all services related thereto, including trade secrets, processes,
technology, intellectual property, information relating to research and development, inventions, designs,
formulas, configurations, engineering drawing, studies, plans, specifications, computer software, computer
hardware, developed (in whole or in part) products, techniques, composition of materials, or applications for
particular technologies;

(i1) the manner and details of the Company’s business operation, organization and management; financial
information and/or documents and other printed, written or electronic material generated or used in connection
with the business; (iii) nonpublic forms, contracts and other documents used by the Company in its business;
and (iv) all information concerning the Company’s employees, agents and contractors, including, without
limitation, such persons’ compensation, benefits, skills, abilities, experience, knowledge and shortcomings, if
any. “Confidential Information” shall not include information that is in the public domain through no
wrongful act on the part of any Member.

(b) With respect to the foregoing restrictions, the Members each expressly acknowledge
and agree that: (i) the Confidential Information is valuable, special, and unique to the Company; that it is not
widely known; and that the Company’s operation of its business
depends on such Confidential Information; (ii) such Member will take, reasonable, and necessary steps to
protect the Confidential Information and keep it confidential; and (iii) the restrictions are necessary to protect
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the Company’s legitimate interests in the Confidential Information, and that any violation thereof would result in
irreparable injury to the Company.

(©) Injunctive Relief. The Members agree that each are obligated under this Agreement to
comply with covenants of a special character, thereby giving this Agreement unique value so that the violation
by a Member of this Agreement, including without limitation this Section 22, could not reasonably or adequately
be compensated in damages at law. Therefore, the Members agree that, in the event of any breach (or threatened
breach) by a Member of any covenant or obligation contained in this Agreement, the Company will be entitled
to injunctive relief (in addition to any other remedy that may be available to them, including monetary damages).

23. Standards of Care; Limitation of Liability. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement
or Applicable Law, whenever in this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated hereby or otherwise,
the Manager, in its capacity as the manager of Company, is permitted to or required to make a decision, the
Manager shall be entitled to consider only such interests and factors as it desires, including its own interests, and
shall have no duty or obligation (fiduciary or otherwise) to give any consideration to any interest of or factors
affecting the Company or the Members, and shall not be subject to any other or different standards imposed by
this Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby, under the Act or under any other Applicable Law,
rule or regulation. Whenever in this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated hereby or otherwise the
Manager is permitted to or required to make a decision in “good faith” then for purposes of this Agreement, the
Manager, or any of their Affiliates that cause them to make any such decision, shall be conclusively presumed
to be acting in good faith if such Person or Persons subjectively believe(s) that the decision made or not made is
in the best interests of Company.

(a) Whenever the Manager makes a determination or takes or declines to take any other
action, or any of their Affiliates cause them to do so, in their individual capacities as opposed to in their
capacities as the Manager of Company, whether under this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated
hereby or otherwise, then the Manager, or such Aftiliates causing them to do so, are entitled, to the fullest
extent permitted by Applicable Law, to make such determination or to take or decline to take such other action
free of any duty (including any fiduciary duty) or obligation, whatsoever to the Company, any Member or any
other Person bound by this Agreement, and the Manager, or such Affiliates causing them to do so, shall not, to
the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Law, be required to act pursuant to any other standard imposed by
this Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the Act or any other Applicable Law, rule
or regulation or at equity. Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, to the fullest extent permitted by
Applicable Law, the Manager shall not have any duties or liabilities, including fiduciary duties, to the
Company, any Member or any other Person bound by this Agreement or any creditor of Company, and the
provisions of this Agreement, to the extent that they restrict or otherwise modify or eliminate the duties and
liabilities, including

fiduciary duties, of the Manager otherwise existing at law or in equity, are agreed by the Members to replace
such other duties and liabilities of the Manager.

(b) The Members expressly acknowledge that the Manager is under no obligation to
consider the separate interests of the Members (including, without limitation, the tax consequences to
Members) in deciding whether to cause Company to take (or decline to take) any actions, and that the Manager
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shall not be liable for monetary damages for losses sustained, liabilities incurred or benefits not derived by
Members in connection with such decisions.

(c) The Manager may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon
any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, order, bond,
debenture or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by
the proper party or parties hereto.

(d) The Manager may consult with legal counsel, accountants, appraisers, management
consultants, investment bankers and other consultants and advisers selected by them, and any act taken or
omitted to be taken in reliance upon the advice or opinion of such Persons as to matters that the Manager
reasonably believes to be within such Person's professional or expert competence shall be conclusively
presumed to have been done or omitted in good faith and in accordance with such advice or opinion.

(e) The Manager shall have the right, in respect of any of their powers or obligations
hereunder, to act through any of their duly authorized officers or any duly appointed attorney or attorneys-in-
fact. Each such attorney shall, to the extent provided by the Manager in the power of attorney, have full
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and duty that is permitted or required to be done by
the Manager hereunder.

24. Exculpation and Indemnification.

(a) The Manager shall not be liable to the Company, any other Members or any other Person
who has an interest in the Company for any loss, damage, or claim incurred by reason of any act or omission
performed or omitted by the Manager in good faith on behalf of the Company and in a manner reasonably
believed to be within the scope of the authority conferred on the Manager by this Agreement.

(b) Indemnification: Proceeding Other than by Company. The Company may, but is not
obligated to, indemnify any Person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened,

pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, except
an action by or in the right of the Company, by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a Manager, Member,
officer, employee or agent of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a manager,
member, shareholder, director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of any other Person, joint venture,
trust or other enterprise, against expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the action, suit or
proceeding if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the Company, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no
reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding
by judgment, order, settlement,

conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, does not, of itself, create a presumption that the
person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to
the best interests of the Company, and that, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, he or she had
reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.
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(¢) Indemnification: Proceeding by Company. The Company may indemnify any Person who
was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by
or in the right of the Company to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a
Manager, Member, officer, employee or agent of the Company, or is or was serving at the request of the
Company as a manager, member, shareholder, director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of any other
Person, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including amounts paid in settlement and
attorneys' fees actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the defense or settlement of
the action or suit if he or she acted in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in
or not opposed to the best interests of the Company. Indemnification may not be made for any claim, issue or
matter as to which such Person has been adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, after exhaustion of all
appeals therefrom, to be liable to the Company or for amounts paid in settlement to the Company, unless and
only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought or other court of competent jurisdiction
determines upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case, the Person is fairly and
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court deems proper.

(d) Mandatory Indemnification. To the extent that a Manager, Member, officer, employee or
agent of the Company has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or
proceeding described in Sections 24(b) or (c), or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she
must be indemnified by the Company against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably
incurred by him or her in connection with the defense.

(e) Authorization of Indemnification. Any indemnification under Sections 24(b) or (c), unless
ordered by a court or advanced pursuant to Section 24(f), may be made by the Company only as authorized in
the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the Manager, Member, officer, employee or
agent is proper in the circumstances. The determination must be made by the Class B Member if the Person
seeking indemnity is not the Class B Member or by independent legal counsel selected by the Managers in a
written opinion.

(f) Mandatory Advancement of Expenses. The expenses of Managers, Members and officers
incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding must be paid by the Company as they are
incurred and in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding, upon receipt of an
undertaking by or on behalf of the Manager, Member or officer to repay the amount if it is ultimately
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified by the
Company. The provisions of this Section 24(f) do not affect any rights to advancement of expenses to which
personnel of the Company other than Managers, Members or officers may be entitled under any contract or
otherwise.

(g) Effect and Continuation. The indemnification and advancement of expenses authorized in
or ordered by a court pursuant to Sections 24 (a) — (f), inclusive:

(1) Does not exclude any other rights to which a Person seeking indemnification
or advancement of expenses may be entitled under the Articles of Organization or any operating
agreement, vote of Members or disinterested Managers, if any, or otherwise, for either an action in his
or her official capacity or an action in another capacity while holding his or her office, except that
indemnification, unless ordered by a court pursuant to Section 24(c) or for the advancement of
expenses made pursuant to Section 24(f), may not be made to or on behalf of any Member, Manager
or officer if a final adjudication establishes that his or her acts or omissions involved intentional
misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty, fraud or a knowing violation of the law and was material to the
cause of action.
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(11) Continues for a Person who has ceased to be a Member, Manager, officer,
employee or agent and inures to the benefit of his or her heirs, executors and administrators.

(h) Notice of Indemnification and Advancement. Any indemnification of, or advancement of
expenses to, a Manager, Member, officer, employee or agent of the Company in accordance with this Section
24, if arising out of a proceeding by or on behalf of the Company, shall be reported promptly in writing to the
Members

(1) Repeal or Modification. Any repeal or modification of this Section 24 by the Members of
the Company shall not adversely affect any right of a Manager, Member, officer, employee or agent of the
Company existing hereunder at the time of such repeal or modification.
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25. Restrictions on Transfers of Units. A Member shall not sell, assign, exchange, pledge, or otherwise
transfer for consideration (collectively, “Sell” or “Sale”) or give or otherwise transfer for no consideration
(collectively, “Give” or “Gift”) all or any part of the Member’s Units (including, without limitation, voting rights
or the Member’s Economic Interest (as defined below) without the prior written consent of the Manager, in the
Manager’s sole and absolute discretion. A Sale or Gift, including but not limited to a Sale or Gift by operation of
law, of Units collectively may be referred to as a “Transfer” under this Agreement, a Member who Transfers his
or her Units may be referred to as a “Transferring Member,” and a Person to whom a Unit is transferred may be
referred to as a “Proposed Transferee” or a “Transferee.” Each Member hereby acknowledges the reasonableness
of the restrictions on the Transfer of Units imposed by this Agreement in view of the Company’s purposes and
the relationship of the Members. Accordingly, the restrictions on Transfer contained herein shall be specifically
enforceable. Any Transfer or attempted Transfer of all or any portion of Units in violation of this Section 24(b)
shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever, and the Company shall not recognize such Transfer or
attempted Transfer. There are no permitted Gifts under this Section 24(b).

26. Resignation. A Member may not resign or retire as a Member of the Company without the written
consent of the Manager. A Member which resigns or retires in contravention of this Agreement shall be liable
to the Company for any damages occasioned by such resignation or retirement and, in addition to any remedies
the Company may have at law or in equity, the Company may offset against any amounts it may owe to such
resigning or retiring Member (in connection with a Distribution or otherwise) any such damages occasioned by
such resignation or retirement.

27. Dissociation of Members.

(a) Dissociation in General. A Class A Member shall become a “Dissociated Holder” to the
extent such Class A Member’s Class A Units become the subject of a Dissociation Event. A Dissociation Event
shall mean that the Class A Units of the Class A Member shall be converted from a membership interest to an
Economic Interest as set forth in Section 27(b) (and thus the Dissociated Holder shall cease to be a Member with
respect to such Units which is the subject of a Dissociation Event), upon the happening of any of the following
events (the “Dissociation Event”):

(1) the bankruptcy of a Class A Member;
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(i1) in the case of a Class A Member who is a natural person, the death of the Class
A Member or the entry of an order by a court of competent jurisdiction adjudicating the Class A Member
incompetent to manage the Class A Member’s person or property;

(111) in the case of a Class A Member who is not a natural person, the dissolution or
termination of such Class A Member;

(iv) a transfer of any or all of a Class A Member’s Units due to foreclosure even if the
pledge or encumbrance of all or any portion of any of the Units as security for repayment of a liability has been
previously approved;

v) any judicial order to convey all or any portion of the Class A Member’s Units as
a result of judicial order or legal process; or

(vi) the divorce or dissolution of the marriage of a Class A Member who is a natural
person, where a court issues a decree or order that transfers, confirms, or awards such Class A Member’s Class
A Units, or any portion thereof, to that Member’s spouse

(b) Conversion to Economic Interest. Upon the Dissociation of a Member, the Units subject
to the Dissociation Event shall immediately and automatically convert from a membership interest into a right to
receive only a share of Distributions and tax allocations pursuant to this Agreement, but shall not have the right:
(1) to vote on any matter as a Member; (i1) to participate in the management of the business and affairs of the
Company; or (ii1) to otherwise exercise or enjoy the powers or privileges of a Member under this Agreement,
the Articles, or the Act (an “Economic Interest”). If a Dissociated Holder who is a natural person dies or a
court of competent jurisdiction adjudges the Dissociated Holder to be incompetent to manage his or her person
or his or her property, the Dissociated Holder’s personal representative, administrator, guardian, conservator or
other legal representative may exercise the Dissociated Holder’s rights under the converted Economic Interest.
If a Dissociated Holder is not a natural person, and is dissolved or terminated, the powers with respect to the
Economic Interest of the Dissociated Holder may be exercised by the Dissociated Holder’s legal representative
or successor. A Dissociated Holder’s Economic Interest may be reconstituted as a membership interest upon the
consent of the Manager.

(©) Repurchase Rights. Unless reconstituted as a membership interest pursuant to Section
27(b) and upon a Dissociation Event, the Company, and the Members other than the

Dissociated Holder (the “Non-Dissociated Members”), and each of them, have the option to purchase the
Dissociated Holder’s Economic Interest subject to the Dissociation Event (the “Dissociation Offered Units”)
on the terms and conditions as provided in this Section 27 for a period of 360 days following the date of the
determination of the Agreed Value (as defined below) of the Dissociation Offered Units (the “Dissociation
Option Period”). The purchase option shall be exercised by written notice to the Dissociated Holder given
within such Dissociation Option Period as set forth herein. The Company may exercise its purchase option
during the first 180 days of the Dissociation Option Period. If the Company fails to exercise its purchase option
as to all the Dissociation Offered Units, then each Non-Dissociated Member shall have the option to purchase
the remaining portion of the Dissociation Offered Units by notifying the Dissociated Holder and the Company in
writing whether such Non-Dissociated Member exercises such Non- Dissociated Member’s option to purchase
the remaining portion of the Dissociation Offered Units and the percentage of the remaining portion of the
Dissociation Offered Units such Non- Dissociated Member agrees to purchase. If the Non-Dissociated Members
oversubscribe for the remaining portion of the Dissociation Offered Units, then the allocation provisions of
Section 27(e) shall be applicable. For the avoidance of doubt, any transfer of Units pursuant to this Section 27(c)
shall be exempt from the transfer restrictions set forth in Section 25.
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(d) Purchase Price. The purchase price of the Dissociated Offered Units shall be determined
as follows:

(1) If the option to purchase is triggered by a Dissociation Event described in Section
27(a)(i1) or 27(a)(iii), then the purchase price for the Dissociation Offered Units to be purchased shall be the
Agreed Value of the Dissociated Holder’s Units.

(i1) If the option to purchase is triggered by any reason other than a Dissociation
Event described in Section 27(a)(ii) or 27(a)(iii), the purchase price shall be 80% of the Agreed Value of
the Dissociated Holder’s Units. In addition, the Dissociated Holder shall pay to the Company, as liquidated
damages, any and all costs and expenses incurred by the Company or the Non-Dissociated Members as a result
of the Dissociation of the Member, including but not limited to attorneys fees and those costs and expenses
associated with or incurred in connection with any challenge to the enforceability or application of this Section
27(d)(i1), but excluding those costs and expenses described in the definition of Agreed Value.

(ii1) For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Agreed Value” means the fair
market value of the Dissociated Holder’s Units in the Company as determined by mutual agreement between
the Dissociated Holder and the Option Holder (as defined below). If the parties are unable to agree upon the fair
market value of the Dissociated Holder’s Units in the Company within 60 days of the date of the Dissociation
Event, then the Agreed Value shall mean the fair market value of the Dissociated Holder’s Units in the Company
as a Member immediately prior to the Dissociation Event as determined by appraisal of the Dissociated Holder’s
Units in the Company as set forth below.

(A) The Dissociated Holder and the Company or Non- Dissociated Members,
collectively (such option holder or option holders collectively referred to in this definition of Agreed Value as
the “Option Holder”) shall agree to appoint, within 90 days of the date of exercise of the purchase rights set
forth in Section 27(c), at the shared expense (i.e.,

one-half each) of the Dissociated Holder and the Option Holder(s) exercising the purchase right, a qualified
appraiser (the “Qualified Appraiser”), who shall be a professional appraiser or certified public accountant
qualified by experience and ability to appraise the interests of a partner of a limited partnership, the membership
interests of a limited liability company and the shares of the capital stock of a closely-held corporation. If only
one Qualified Appraiser is appointed, that appraiser’s written opinion on the fair market value of the Dissociated
Holder’s Units in the Company shall be conclusive and binding on both the Dissociated Holder and the Option
Holder.

(B) If the Dissociated Holder and the Option Holder cannot agree among
themselves within the 90-day period the appointment of the Qualified Appraiser, the Dissociated Holder, at such
Dissociated Holder’s sole expense, shall appoint a Qualified Appraiser, and the Option Holder shall, at such
Option Holder’s sole expense, appoint a Qualified Appraiser within 120 days of the Dissolution Event. If only
one of the parties appoints a Qualified Appraiser within the 120-day period, that appraiser’s written opinion on
the fair market value of the Dissociated Holder’s Units in the Company shall be conclusive and binding on both
the Dissociated Holder and the Option Holder. If the Disassociated Member and the Option Holder each appoint
a Qualified Appraiser, and if both Qualified Appraisers agree on the fair market value of the Company, their
opinion, which shall be submitted in writing, shall be conclusive and binding on both the Dissociated Holder
and the Option Holder.

© If the two Qualified Appraisers disagree on the fair market value of the
Company by less than 10% of the lesser appraisal, the fair market value of the Company shall be equal to the
average of the two appraisals, and such value shall be conclusive and binding on the Dissociated Holder and the
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Option Holder. If the two Qualified Appraisers disagree on the fair market value of the Company by more than
10% of the lesser appraisal, they shall appoint a third Qualified Appraiser mutually acceptable to them. If the
two Qualified Appraisers cannot mutually agree on the appointment of a third Qualified Appraiser within twenty
days of the date of the earliest written appraisal, the third Qualified Appraiser shall be chosen by the chief judge
of judicial district of the State of Colorado where the principal offices of the Company are then located. The fees
and expenses of the third Qualified Appraiser shall be divided equally between the Dissociated Holder and the
Option Holder. The written appraisal of such third Qualified Appraiser shall be conclusive and binding on both
the Dissociated Holder and the Option Holder.

(e) Procedures in the Event of Oversubscription. If the Non-Dissociated Members
oversubscribe for the Dissociation Offered Units, then each subscribing Non- Dissociated Member shall be
entitled to purchase a fraction of the Dissociation Offered Units, the numerator of which is the Units then held
by each subscribing Non-Dissociated Member, and the denominator of which is the Units then held by all
the subscribing Non-Dissociated Members; provided, however, that no subscribing Non-Dissociated Member
shall be allocated more of the Dissociation Offered Units than the maximum amount such subscribing Non-
Dissociated Member indicated in such Non-Dissociated Member’s notice to purchase, and any Dissociation
Offered Units which would otherwise be allocated to such subscribing Non-Dissociated Member will be
allocated among the other subscribing Non-Dissociated Member in accordance with this sentence. Nothing
contained herein shall prevent any two or more subscribing Non-Dissociated Members from agreeing on an
alternative allotment among themselves at any time prior to purchase and so advising the Dissociated Member
and the Company, provided that such subscribing Non-

Dissociated Members in a group purchase all the Dissociation Offered Units allocated to them.

® Payment terms of Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Dissociation Offered Units
shall be paid in cash, or certified check, or at the option of the Option Holder purchasing the Dissociation
Offered Units (each a “Purchaser”), 20% of the purchase price may be paid on the respective closing date with
the remaining balance to be paid in four equal annual installments of principal and interest. This installment
obligation shall be evidenced by a promissory note containing an interest rate equal to the prime rate published
by The Wall Street Journal (New York edition), as of the closing date plus 1%. The promissory note shall provide
that the maker shall have the privilege at any time to prepay without penalty all or any part of the balance due
on the Note with interest to the date of prepayment. The promissory note shall be secured by a pledge of the
Dissociation Offered Units being purchased pursuant to such promissory note. Each Purchaser shall be liable
and obligated only for the purchase of and payment for such respective Purchaser’s share of the Dissociation
Offered Units and shall not be jointly and severally liable with any other Purchaser. The foregoing provisions
shall not prevent any Purchaser and the Dissociated Holder from agreeing on alternative terms of payment.
Upon final payment of the purchase price, the Dissociated Holder shall deliver to each Purchaser documents that
evidence the transfer of the Dissociation Offered Units, free and clear of all claims, equities, liens, charges, and
encumbrances.
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28. Dissolution. The Company shall dissolve, and its affairs shall be wound up upon the earliest to
occur of the following:

(a) the written consent of a Supermajority Interest of the Class A Members and
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the Manager;

(b) the Manager (i) files an application for or consents to, the appointment of a
trustee or receiver of its assets; (ii) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or files a pleading in any court of
record admitting in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes a general assignment
for the benefit of creditors; (iv) files an answer admitting the material allegations of, or consents to, or defaults
in answering a bankruptcy petition filed against it; or (v) any court of competent jurisdiction enters an order,
judgment or decree adjudicating the Manager a debtor or appointing a trustee or receiver of its assets, if such
order, judgment or decree continues un-stayed and in effect for a period of 60 days;

() the death, resignation, court declaration of incompetence, or dissolution of the Manager
when an approved replacement is not obtained within one-year of such death, resignation, court declaration of
incompetence, or dissolution as set forth in Section 17(d);

(d) the sale of all or substantially all of the Assets of the Company; provided, however, that
if the Company receives any deferred or noncash consideration in conjunction with such sale, the Company
shall not be dissolved hereunder until the Manager determines that the continued existence of the Company is
no longer necessary to collect or hold such deferred or noncash consideration; and

(e) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of the Company under Section 7-80-810 of
the Act.

29. Liquidation Upon Dissolution.

(a) Liquidator. Upon the dissolution of the Company, sole and plenary authority to effectuate
the liquidation of the Assets of the Company shall be vested in the Manager and, in the event of the resignation,
dissolution, liquidation, or bankruptcy of the Manager, in a liquidator to be appointed by a Majority Interest of
the Class A Members (the “Liquidator”). The Liquidator shall have full power and authority to sell, assign and
encumber any and all of the Company’s Assets and to wind up and liquidate the affairs of the Company in an
orderly and business-like manner.

(b) Value of Assets. The Liquidator shall determine, in its sole discretion, the fair market
value of all Assets of the Company as at the date of Distribution of such Assets and the profits and losses
resulting from such Distribution shall be allocated in accordance with Section 15 hereof.

(c) Distribution of Proceeds of Liquidation. The proceeds of liquidation of the Assets of the
Company distributable upon a dissolution and winding up of the Company shall be applied in the following
order of priority:

(1) first, to the creditors of the Company, including creditors who are Members, in
the order of priority provided by Applicable Law, in satisfaction of all liabilities and obligations of the Company
(of any nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, fixed or contingent, matured or un-matured, legal
or equitable, secured or unsecured), whether by payment or the making of reasonable provision for payment
thereof; and

(i1) thereafter, to the Members in accordance with Section 16.

(d) Any Distributions to the Members in respect of such liquidation shall be made in
accordance with the time requirements set forth in Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(i1)(b)(2) of the Treasury Regulations.
If the Capital Account of any Member has a deficit balance after such Distributions (after giving effect to
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all contributions, Distributions and allocations for all taxable years) such Member shall have no obligation to
make any contribution to the capital of the Company with respect to such deficit and such deficit shall not be
considered a debt owed to the Company or to any other person or entity
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30. Tax Matters.

(a) Filings. The Manager shall, on behalf of the Company, arrange, supervise and oversee the
preparation and timely filing of all returns of Company income, gain, deductions, losses, credits and other items
necessary for federal, state, local, and foreign income tax purposes and shall use all reasonable efforts to furnish
to the Members, within 90 days after the close of the taxable year, the tax information reasonably required for
federal, state, local and foreign income tax reporting purposes. The taxable year of the Company shall be the
calendar year unless another year is required by the Code (the “Company Year”).

(b) Elections. The Manager shall make all tax elections on behalf of the Company; provided,
however, that if a distribution of Company property as described in Section 734 of the Code occurs or if a
transfer of Units or an Interest in the Company as described in

Section 743 occurs, on the written request of any Member, the Company shall make an election pursuant to
Section 754 of the Code to adjust the basis of Company properties.

(c) Partnership Representative.

(1) Appointment. The Manager shall be the “partnership representative” (the
“Partnership Representative”) as provided in Code Section 6223(a) (as amended by the Bipartisan Budget Act
of 2015 (“BBA”)). The Partnership Representative may resign at any time if there is another Member to act as
the Partnership Representative.

(i1) Tax Examinations and Audits. The Partnership Representative is authorized and
required to represent the Company (at the Company's expense) in connection with all examinations of the
Company's affairs by any federal, state, local, or foreign taxing authority (each a “Taxing Authority”), including
resulting administrative and judicial proceedings, and to expend Company funds for professional services and
costs associated therewith. Each Member agrees that such Member will not independently act with respect to
tax audits or tax litigation of the Company, unless previously authorized to do so in writing by the Partnership
Representative, which authorization may be withheld by the Partnership Representative in its sole and absolute
discretion. The Partnership Representative shall have sole discretion to determine whether the Company (either
on its own behalf or on behalf of the Members) will contest or continue to contest any tax deficiencies assessed
or proposed to be assessed by any Taxing Authority. The Company and its Members shall be bound by the
actions taken by the Partnership Representative.

(iii)  BBA Elections and Procedures. In the event of an audit of the Company that is
subject to the partnership audit procedures enacted under Section 1101 of the BBA (the “BBA Procedures”), the
Partnership Representative, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to make any and all elections and to take
any actions that are available to be made or taken by the Partnership Representative or the Company under the
BBA Procedures (including any election under Code Section 6226 as amended by the BBA). If an election under
Code Section 6226(a) (as amended by the BBA) is made, the Company shall furnish to each Member for the
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year under audit a statement of the Member's share of any adjustment set forth in the notice of final partnership
adjustment, and each Member shall take such adjustment into account as required under Code Section 6226(b)
(as amended by the BBA).

(iv) Tax Returns and Tax Deficiencies. Each Member agrees that such Member shall
not treat any Company item inconsistently on such Member's federal, state, foreign or other income tax return
with the treatment of the item on the Company's return. Any deficiency for taxes imposed on any Member
(including penalties, additions to tax or interest imposed with respect to such taxes and any taxes imposed
pursuant to Code Section 6226 as amended by the BBA) will be paid by such Member and if required to be paid
(and actually paid) by the Company, will be recoverable from such Member by the Company, and such Member
shall be liable to the Company for all of its costs, expenses, and fees (including attorneys’ and accountants’ fees)
incurred in connection therewith.

v) Income Tax Elections. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Partnership
Representative shall have sole discretion to make any determination regarding income tax elections it deems
advisable on behalf of the Company; provided, that the Partnership

Representative will make an election under Code Section 754, if requested in writing by another Member.
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31. Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended, except the Manager shall have the authority to
(1) amend the Members Schedule as necessary to reflect the identity of holders of the Units and new Members;
(i1) add to the representations, duties, or obligations of the Manager or surrender any right or power granted to
the Manager; (iii) cure any ambiguity or correct or supplement any provision hereof which may be inconsistent
with any other provision hereof or correct any printing, stenographic, or clerical errors or omissions; (iv) provide
for the admission, withdrawal, or substitution of Members in accordance with this Agreement; (v) delete or add
any provisions of this Agreement required to be so deleted or added by Applicable Law or by a securities law
commissioner or similar such official or in order to qualify for a private placement exemption; (vi) to reflect any
change in the amount of the Capital Contribution of any Member in accordance with this Agreement; and (vii)
as otherwise provided in this Agreement; provided, however, that no amendment shall be adopted pursuant to
this Section 31 if such amendment would
(a) modify the limited liability of a Member, (b) alter a Member’s right to transfer all or a portion of such
Member’s Units pursuant to this Agreement, (c) alter any provision contained in this Section 31 (with any
such alteration being deemed to adversely affect each Member), or (d) limit or adversely affect such Member’s
voting rights; provided, however, that this consent provision shall not apply in the case of any effect that applies
proportionally to all Members.

32. Representations and Warranties of the Class A Members. Each Class A Member hereby makes
the representations and warranties set forth below with the express intention that they be relied upon by
the Company, the Manager, and the officers of the Company in determining the suitability of such Class A
Member’s acquisition of Class A Units.

(a) Units Not Registered. The Member understands that the Units have not been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any applicable state Securities Law (the
“Blue Sky Laws” and, together with the Securities Act, the “Securities Laws”). Furthermore, the Company is
not under any obligation to register the Units at any time under Securities Laws.
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(b) Acquisition of Units is Speculative. The Member has reviewed all documents the
Member deems necessary to understand and evaluate the risks and merits of an investment in the Company.
The Member recognizes that (i) the purchase of the Units is a speculative investment involving a high degree
of risk, (ii) the economic benefits that may be derived therefrom are uncertain, and (iii) the total amount of the
Member’s investment could be lost.

(c) Forward Looking Statements. The Member understands that to the extent that the
Member has received information consisting of projections and estimates concerning the timing and success of
general investments or specific activities, revenues, income and capital spending, which are known as “forward-
looking statements,” such information is subject to risks and uncertainties that may change at any time, and,
therefore, actual results may differ materially from those that are expected. The Member further understands that
the forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and the Member cannot be assured that
such statements will be realized or the forward-looking events and circumstances will occur.

(d) Ability to Bear Risk of Investment. The Member has the ability to bear the economic
risks of the investment. The Member’s overall commitment to investments that are illiquid or not readily
marketable is in proportion to the Member’s net worth, and the acquisition of the Units will not cause the
Member’s overall commitment to illiquid investments to become disproportionate to the Member’s net worth.
The Member has adequate means of providing for the Member’s financial requirements, both current and
anticipated, and has no need for liquidity in an investment in the Units.

(e) Investment Purposes. The Member is acquiring the Units for investment for his, her or
its own account and beneficial interest and not with a view to or for resale or distribution thereof. The Member
further represents that the Member does not have any contract, undertaking, agreement, or arrangement with any
Person to sell, transfer, or grant participation to any such Person with respect to the Units.

43} SEC Disclaimer. The Member understands and agrees that the Units have not been
recommended, approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any
other federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority, nor has any such commission or regulatory
authority passed upon the accuracy or determined the adequacy of this Agreement, the items contained in this
Agreement, any ancillary documents and any document or disclosure the Member may have received with
respect to the Company. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

(2) Binding Obligation; Compliance with Other Instruments. This Agreement has been duly
authorized, executed and delivered by the Member and constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of
the Member, enforceable against the Member in accordance with its terms. The Member is not in violation or
default of, and the execution, delivery and performance of and compliance with this Agreement by Member
will not result in a violation or default of any provision of any document, agreement or order, each as in effect
immediately prior to entering into this Agreement, that would reasonably be expected to prevent the Member
from performing or materially adversely affect the Member’s ability to perform his, her or its obligations under
this Agreement.

(h) Opportunity to Investigate the Risks. The Member and his, her, or its representative(s),
as applicable, have received and reviewed certain information concerning the Company and the Member has
had an opportunity to make inquiries concerning the Company and all matters relevant to an investment in
the Company. The Member has been given the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the
Company concerning the Company’s business, capital structure, management, the Units, the risks associated
with an investment in the Company, and has been given the opportunity to obtain such additional information as
the Member deems necessary to evaluate an investment in the Company. The Company makes no representation
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or warranty with respect to the completeness of such information and makes no representation or warranty of
any kind with respect to any information provided to the Member other than that set forth in this Agreement.

(1) Experience. The Member, together with the Member’s advisor(s), has such knowledge
and experience in financial, tax, and business matters so as to enable the Member to evaluate the merits and risks
of an investment in the Company. The Member, together with the

Member’s advisor(s), is able to fend for himself, herself, or itself in transactions such as the one contemplated
by this Agreement.

(j) Accredited Investor. The Member is either:

(1) an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D as
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act and, in such case,
shall submit to the Company such further assurances of such status as may be reasonably requested by
the Company; or

(i1) such Member’s Capital Contribution is less than or equal to ten percent
(10%) of the greater of such Member’s:

(A) Annual income or net worth, calculated as provided in the definition of “accredited investor” as defined in
Rule 501 of Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act;
or

(B) Revenue or net assets for the most recently completed fiscal year.

(k) Investment Company Act. In the event Company is considered to be an “investment
company” under Section 3(a)(1) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”), the Member
acknowledges that the Company intends to rely on the exception from the definition of “investment company” in
Section 3(c)(1) of the 1940 Act. The Member further represents and warrants that if the Member will own 10%
or more of the Units outstanding after the Final Closing, the Member is not an “investment company’” within the
meaning of the 1940 Act, nor is the Member an entity that would be such an investment company, but for the
exception provided in Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act.

)] Accuracy of Information; Other Members and Company Relying on Representations and
Warranties. The information contained above in this Section 32 is true and accurate information as of the date
hereof. The Member understands and agrees that the Member is one of several investors in the Units (the
other investors in the Units being referred to herein collectively as, the “Other Members”) and that the Other
Members are entering into this Agreement. The Member further understands and agrees that the Other Members
and the Company are relying on the accuracy and completeness of the Member’s representations and warranties
in this Agreement.
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33. Miscellaneous.
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(a) Severability. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered separable and if for
any reason any provision or provisions herein are determined to be invalid, unenforceable or illegal under any
existing or future law, such invalidity, unenforceability, or illegality shall not impair the operation of or affect
those portions of this Agreement, which are valid, enforceable, and legal.

(b) Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers, and other
communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given (1)

when delivered by hand (with written confirmation of receipt); (i1) when received by the addressee if sent by
a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); (iii) on the date sent by facsimile or email (with
confirmation of transmission) if sent during normal business hours of the recipient, and on the next business day
if sent after normal business hours of the recipient; or (iv) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or
registered mail (in each case, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid). Such communications must be sent to
the respective parties at the following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified in a
notice given in accordance with this Section 33(b).):

If to the Manager: EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Attention: Rodman Schley
7491 Kline Drive
Arvada CO 80005 Email:
rodman@gorodman.com

If to the Member, at the address, facsimile, and/or email listed on the records of the Company for such
Member.

(©) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy
of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, email, Docusign, or other means of electronic transmission shall be
deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original copy of this Agreement.

(d) Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all schedules and exhibits hereto, together with
the Subscription Agreements, constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the
subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior understandings or agreements between the parties.

(e) Successors. This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the parties hereto and
their transferees, heirs, successors, assigns, and legal representatives.

® Governing Law. This Agreement and all related documents including all schedules and
exhibits attached hereto, and all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement, are governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Colorado, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions
thereof to the extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than those of the State of Colorado.

(2) Dispute Resolution. Any dispute that arises under this Agreement, which the parties
cannot otherwise resolve, shall be initially submitted to mediation in Denver, Colorado before a mediator agreed
upon by the parties; if the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, then they shall submit their dispute to the
Judicial Arbiter Group, or, if that company no longer exists, to the American Arbitration Association, for
mediation. If a dispute is not resolved within thirty days of the holding of a mediation session, then it shall
be submitted for binding arbitration to the Judicial Arbiter Group, or, if that company no longer exists, to
the American Arbitration Association in Denver, Colorado pursuant to its Commercial Arbitration Rules. The
parties consent to personal
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jurisdiction and venue being proper in such courts. In arbitration, the arbitrator’s award shall be final and
binding and may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

(h) Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties hereto
(and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns) and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person, including any creditor of the Company, any legal
or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

(1) Waiver. Any party hereto may, only by an instrument in writing signed by a duly
authorized representative, waive compliance by any other party hereto with any term or provision of this
Agreement on the part of such other party hereto to be performed or complied with. The waiver by any party
hereto of a breach of any terms or provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any
subsequent breach.

Q)] Headings; Definitions; Construction. The Section headings contained in this Agreement
are inserted for convenience of reference only and will not affect the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement. All references to Sections contained herein mean Sections of this Agreement unless otherwise
stated. All capitalized terms defined herein are equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such
terms. A reference in this Agreement to any statute shall be to such statute as amended from time to time, and
the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(k) Waiver of Partition. The Members agree that the Company Assets are not and will not be
suitable for partition. Accordingly, each Member hereby irrevocably waives any and all rights that it may have
to maintain any action for partition of any Company Assets.

)] Legal Counsel. The Members and Manager acknowledge that the Company’s counsel,
Troxel Fitch, LLC (“TF”) prepared this Agreement on behalf of, and in the course of its representation of the
Company. TF may also be counsel to the Manager or any of its Affiliates. Each Class A Member acknowledges
that TF does not represent any Class A Member and TF shall owe no duties directly to a Class A Member.
Each Class A Member acknowledges that, whether or not TF has in the past represented such Class A Member
with respect to other matters, TF has not represented the interest of any Class A Member in the preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement. Further, the Class A Members have been advised by TF that a conflict exists
among their individual interests as Members of a limited liability company. Each Class A Member should seek
the advice of independent counsel prior to becoming a Member, and by signing this Agreement or the Joinder
Agreement such Member acknowledges that they have had the opportunity to do so. Finally, each Member
acknowledges that TF has advised that there may be tax and legal consequences to this Agreement and that TF
has not advised as to the tax and/or legal consequences to the Members individual interest with respect to this
Agreement and the transactions referenced herein.
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[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, intending to be legally bound hereby, have duly
executed this Agreement as of the date and year first above written.
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MANAGER:

EvolveX Capital, LLC

s/Rodman Schley
By, Rodman Schley, Member
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Exhibit A

FORM OF JOINDER AGREEMENT

Reference is hereby made to the Operating Agreement, dated June 9, 2021, as amended from time
to time (the “Operating Agreement”), between EvolveX Capital, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company
and EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Company”). Pursuant to and in
accordance with Section 9(d) of the Operating Agreement, the undersigned hereby acknowledges that it has
received and reviewed a complete copy of the Operating Agreement and agrees that upon execution of this
Joinder, such Person shall become a party to the Operating Agreement and shall be fully bound by, and subject
to, all of the covenants, terms, and conditions of the Operating Agreement as though an original party thereto
and, subject to the consent of the Manager, shall be deemed, and is hereby admitted as, a Member for all
purposes thereof and shall be entitled to all the rights incidental thereto, and shall hold the status of a Class A
Member.

Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Operating Agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of [DATE].
[NEW MEMBER]

By Name:
Title:

Exhibit B

FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
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This Subscription Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of [DATE], is entered into by and between
EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Company”), and [Investor Name], an
individual resident of [STATE] (the “Investor™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company is a limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of Colorado
on June 9, 2021;

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to purchase from the Company, and the Company desires to sell and
issue to the Investor, NUMBER OF CLASS A UNITS] Class A Units, subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement;

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given to such terms in
that certain Operating Agreement, dated June 9, 2021, as amended from time to time, between EvolveX Capital,
LLC, and the Company (the “Operating Agreement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the mutual
representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
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AGREEMENT

1. Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, on the day of Closing, the
Investor shall purchase from the Company, and the Company shall sell and issue to the Investor,  NUMBER OF
CLASS A UNITS] Class A Units (the “Subscription Units™) at a price of $1,000 per Class A Unit. Payment for
the Subscription Units shall be made by making a contribution to the capital of the Company in the form of cash
in the aggregate amount of

$[AMOUNT]. At the Closing, Investor shall execute and deliver to the Company a copy of the Operating
Agreement or a joinder agreement in the form provided by the Company. Upon such execution and delivery, the
Investor shall become bound by the terms and conditions of the Operating Agreement.

2. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants
to the Investor that:

(a) Due Organization; Good Standing. The Company is a limited liability company duly
organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Colorado.

(b) Limited Liability Company Power. The Company has all requisite limited liability
company power and authority to (a) enter into this Agreement and to perform all of its obligations hereunder,
(b) carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and (c) issue the Subscription Units to the Investor.

() Authorization. The Company has taken all limited liability company actions necessary
to authorize it to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and,

assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement by the Investor, constitutes a legal, valid,
and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except
as such enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).
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(d) Subscription Units. The Subscription Units, when issued and delivered in accordance
with the terms hereof, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable and will be free and
clear of any liens or encumbrances.
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3. Representations and Warranties of the Investor. The Investor hereby represents and warrants to,
and agrees and covenants with, the Company as follows:

(a) Authority. The Investor has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This
Agreement has been, assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery by the Company, duly and validly
executed and delivered by the Investor and constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Investor,
enforceable against the Investor in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and
by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or
at law).

(b) No Conflicts; No Consents. The execution and delivery by the Investor of this
Agreement, the consummation by the Investor of the transactions contemplated hereby, and the performance
of the Investor’s obligations hereunder do not and will not: (a) conflict with or result in a violation or breach
of applicable law or (b) assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement by the
Company, violate in any material respect, conflict with in any material respect, or result in any material breach
of, or constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) a material default under, or require the Investor
to obtain any consent, approval, or action of, make any filing with or give any notice to any Person as a result or
under the terms of, any contract, agreement, instrument, commitment or arrangement.

(c) Investment Intention; Restriction on Dispositions. The Investor is acquiring the
Subscription Units solely for the Investor’s own account for investment and not on behalf of any other Person
or with a view to, or for sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. The Investor agrees that the Investor
will not, directly or indirectly, offer, transfer, sell, pledge, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any of the
Subscription Units (or solicit any offers to buy, purchase, or otherwise acquire or take a pledge of any of the
Subscription Units), except in compliance with (a) the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder, (b) applicable
state and non-U.S. securities or “blue sky” laws, and (c) the provisions of this Agreement and the Operating
Agreement. The Investor further understands, acknowledges, and agrees that none of the Subscription Units or
any interest therein or any rights relating thereto may be transferred, sold, pledged, hypothecated, or otherwise
disposed of unless (i) the provisions of the Operating Agreement shall have been complied with and (ii) such
disposition is exempt from the provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act or is pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act and is exempt from (or in compliance with) applicable state
securities or “blue sky” laws. Any attempt by the Investor, directly or indirectly, to offer, transfer, sell, pledge,

hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any of the Subscription Units, or any interest therein, or any rights relating
thereto, without complying with the provisions of this Agreement and the Operating Agreement, as applicable,
shall be void and of no effect.

(d) Securities Laws Matters. The Investor acknowledges receipt of advice from the Company
that: (a) the Subscription Units have not been registered under the Securities Act or qualified under any state
securities or “blue sky” laws or non-U.S. securities laws; (b) it is not anticipated that there will be any public
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market for the Subscription Units; (c) the Investor must continue to bear the economic risk of the investment
in the Subscription Units unless the Subscription Units are subsequently registered under the Securities Act and
such state or non-U.S. securities laws or an exemption from such registration is available; (d) a restrictive legend
shall be placed on any certificates representing the Subscription Units that make clear that such Subscription
Units are subject to the restrictions on transferability set forth in this Agreement and the Operating Agreement;
and (e) a notation shall be made in the appropriate records of the Company indicating that the Subscription Units
are subject to restrictions on transfer and, if the Company should in the future engage the services of a transfer
agent, appropriate stop-transfer instructions will be issued to such transfer agent with respect thereto.

(e) Ability to Bear Risk. The Investor acknowledges that: (a) the financial situation of the
Investor is such that it can afford to bear the economic risk of holding the Subscription Units for an indefinite
period; and (b) the Investor can afford to suffer the complete loss of its investment in the Subscription Units.

® Access to Information; Sophistication; Lack of Reliance. The Investor is familiar with
the business and financial condition, properties, operations, and prospects of the Company and the Investor has
been granted the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, representatives of the Company
concerning the Company and the terms and conditions of the acquisition of the Subscription Units and to
obtain any additional information that the Investor deems necessary to verify the accuracy of the information so
provided. The Investor’s knowledge and experience in financial and business matters is such that the Investor is
capable of evaluating the merits and risk of the Investor’s investment in the Subscription Units. The Investor has
carefully reviewed the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the Operating Agreement and has evaluated
the restrictions and obligations contained therein. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Investor represents and
warrants that as of the Closing, (a) no representation or warranty, express or implied, whether written or oral,
as to the financial condition, results of operations, prospects, properties, or business of the Company or as to
the desirability or value of an investment in the Company has been made to the Investor by or on behalf of the
Company, except for those representations and warranties expressly set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement,
(b) the Investor has relied upon the Investor’s own independent appraisal and investigation and the advice of the
Investor’s own counsel, tax advisors, and other advisors regarding the risks of an investment in the Company,
and (c) the Investor will continue to bear sole responsibility for making its own independent evaluation and
monitoring of the risks of its investment in the Company.

(g) Accredited Investor. The Investor is either:

(1) an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D as
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act and,

in such case, shall submit to the Company such further assurances of such status as may be reasonably
requested by the Company; or

(i1) such Member’s Capital Contribution is less than or equal to ten percent
(10%) of the greater of such Member’s:

(A) Annual income or net worth, calculated as provided in the definition of “accredited investor” as defined in
Rule 501 of Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act;
or

(B) Revenue or net assets for the most recently completed fiscal year.
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4. Binding Effect; Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors, heirs, executors,
and administrators of the parties hereto. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended or shall be
construed to give any Person other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors or permitted
assigns any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or in respect of any agreement or any provision
contained herein.

5. Waiver. Any term or provision of this Agreement may be waived at any time by the party that is
entitled to the benefits thereof, but only in writing signed by such party. Except as provided in the preceding
sentence, no action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, any investigation by or on
behalf of any party, shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by the party taking such action of compliance with
any representations, warranties, covenants, or agreements contained herein. The waiver by any party hereto of
a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any preceding or
succeeding breach, and no failure by any party to exercise any right or privilege hereunder shall be deemed
a waiver of such party’s rights or privileges hereunder or shall be deemed a waiver of such party’s rights to
exercise the same at any subsequent time or times hereunder.

6. Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified, amended, altered, or supplemented except
upon the execution and delivery of a written agreement executed by the parties whose rights and/or obligations
hereunder are modified by such written agreement.

7. Assignability. Neither this Agreement, nor any right, remedy, obligation, or liability arising
hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable by the Investor without the prior written consent of the
Company.

8. Governing Law. All issues and questions concerning the application, construction, validity,
interpretation, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of Colorado, without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule
(whether of the State of Colorado or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of laws of any
jurisdiction other than those of the State of Colorado.

9. Enforcement. Each party agrees that the parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms
hereof.

10. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications required or
permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to

have been duly given if (i) delivered personally, (ii) sent by next-day or overnight mail or delivery or (iii) sent
by e-mail, as follows:

If to the Company: EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Attention: Rodman Schley
7491 Kline Drive
Arvada CO 80005 Email:
rodman@gorodman.com
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If to the Investor:
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Attn: [NAME] [ADDRESS]
[ADDRESS]

All such notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers and other communications shall be deemed
to have been received (A) if by personal delivery, on the day delivered, (B) if by next-day or overnight mail or
delivery, on the day delivered, or (C) if by e-mail, on the day delivered.

11. Headings. The headings contained herein are for convenience and shall not control or affect the
meaning or interpretation of any provision hereof.

12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this
Agreement delivered by facsimile, email, Docusign, or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed
to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original copy of this Agreement.

13. Severability. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Operating Agreement, shall constitute the
entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall supersede all prior
agreements, arrangements, understandings, documents, instruments and communications, whether written or
oral, with respect to such subject matter.

15. Further Assurances. Subject to the terms and conditions provided herein, each party hereto
covenants and agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action, and to do,
or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper, or advisable, whether under applicable law or otherwise, in
order to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereby executed this Agreement as of the date first above
written.

THE COMPANY:
EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC

By, EvolveX Capital, LLC, Manager By, Rodman
Schley, Member

THE INVESTOR:
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[NAME]
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FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This Subscription Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of , 202, is entered into by and
between EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (the “Company”), and [INVESTOR
NAME], an individual resident of [STATE] (the “Investor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company is a limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of Colorado
on June 9, 2021;

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to purchase from the Company, and the Company desires to sell and
issue to the Investor, NUMBER OF] Class A Units, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

WHEREAS, capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given to such terms in that
certain Operating Agreement, dated June 9, 2021, as amended from time to time, between EvolveX Capital, LLC,
and the Company (the “Operating Agreement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the mutual
representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained herein and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, on the day of Closing, the
Investor shall purchase from the Company, and the Company shall sell and issue to the Investor,  NUMBER OF]
Class A Units (the “Subscription Units”) at a price of $1,000 per Class A Unit. Payment for the Subscription
Units shall be made by making a contribution to the capital of the Company in the form of cash in the aggregate
amount of $ . At the Closing, Investor shall execute and deliver to the Company a copy of the
Operating Agreement or a joinder agreement in the form provided by the Company. Upon such execution and
delivery, the Investor shall become bound by the terms and conditions of the Operating Agreement.

2. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants
to the Investor that:

(a) Due Organization; Good Standing. The Company is a limited liability company duly
organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Colorado.

(b) Limited Liability Company Power. The Company has all requisite limited liability
company power and authority to (a) enter into this Agreement and to perform all of its obligations hereunder,
(b) carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and (c) issue the Subscription Units to the Investor.

(c) Authorization. The Company has taken all limited liability company actions necessary
to authorize it to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company and,

assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement by the Investor, constitutes a legal, valid,
and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except
as such enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).
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(d) Subscription Units. The Subscription Units, when issued and delivered in accordance
with the terms hereof, will be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable and will be free and
clear of any liens or encumbrances.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Investor. The Investor hereby represents and warrants to,
and agrees and covenants with, the Company as follows:

(a) Authority. The Investor has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This
Agreement has been, assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery by the Company, duly and validly
executed and delivered by the Investor and constitutes a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Investor,
enforceable against the Investor in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and
by general equitable principles (regardless of whether enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or
at law).

(b) No Conflicts; No Consents. The execution and delivery by the Investor of this
Agreement, the consummation by the Investor of the transactions contemplated hereby, and the performance
of the Investor’s obligations hereunder do not and will not: (a) conflict with or result in a violation or breach
of applicable law or (b) assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery of this Agreement by the
Company, violate in any material respect, conflict with in any material respect, or result in any material breach
of, or constitute (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) a material default under, or require the Investor
to obtain any consent, approval, or action of, make any filing with or give any notice to any Person as a result or
under the terms of, any contract, agreement, instrument, commitment or arrangement.

() Investment Intention; Restriction on Dispositions. The Investor is acquiring the
Subscription Units solely for the Investor’s own account for investment and not on behalf of any other Person
or with a view to, or for sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. The Investor agrees that the Investor
will not, directly or indirectly, offer, transfer, sell, pledge, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any of the
Subscription Units (or solicit any offers to buy, purchase, or otherwise acquire or take a pledge of any of the
Subscription Units), except in compliance with (a) the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission thereunder, (b) applicable
state and non-U.S. securities or “blue sky” laws, and (c) the provisions of this Agreement and the Operating
Agreement. The Investor further understands, acknowledges, and agrees that none of the Subscription Units or
any interest therein or any rights relating thereto may be transferred, sold, pledged, hypothecated, or otherwise
disposed of unless (i) the provisions of the Operating Agreement shall have been complied with and (ii) such
disposition is exempt from the provisions of Section 5 of the Securities Act or is pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act and is exempt from (or in compliance with) applicable state
securities or “blue sky” laws. Any attempt by the Investor, directly or indirectly, to offer, transfer, sell, pledge,

hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any of the Subscription Units, or any interest therein, or any rights relating
thereto, without complying with the provisions of this Agreement and the Operating Agreement, as applicable,
shall be void and of no effect.

(d) Securities Laws Matters. The Investor acknowledges receipt of advice from the Company
that: (a) the Subscription Units have not been registered under the Securities Act or qualified under any state
securities or “blue sky” laws or non-U.S. securities laws; (b) it is not anticipated that there will be any public
market for the Subscription Units; (c) the Investor must continue to bear the economic risk of the investment
in the Subscription Units unless the Subscription Units are subsequently registered under the Securities Act and
such state or non-U.S. securities laws or an exemption from such registration is available; (d) a restrictive legend
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shall be placed on any certificates representing the Subscription Units that make clear that such Subscription
Units are subject to the restrictions on transferability set forth in this Agreement and the Operating Agreement;
and (e) a notation shall be made in the appropriate records of the Company indicating that the Subscription Units
are subject to restrictions on transfer and, if the Company should in the future engage the services of a transfer
agent, appropriate stop-transfer instructions will be issued to such transfer agent with respect thereto.

(e) Ability to Bear Risk. The Investor acknowledges that: (a) the financial situation of the
Investor is such that it can afford to bear the economic risk of holding the Subscription Units for an indefinite
period; and (b) the Investor can afford to suffer the complete loss of its investment in the Subscription Units.

® Access to Information; Sophistication; Lack of Reliance. The Investor is familiar with
the business and financial condition, properties, operations, and prospects of the Company and the Investor has
been granted the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, representatives of the Company
concerning the Company and the terms and conditions of the acquisition of the Subscription Units and to
obtain any additional information that the Investor deems necessary to verify the accuracy of the information so
provided. The Investor’s knowledge and experience in financial and business matters is such that the Investor is
capable of evaluating the merits and risk of the Investor’s investment in the Subscription Units. The Investor has
carefully reviewed the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the Operating Agreement and has evaluated
the restrictions and obligations contained therein. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Investor represents and
warrants that as of the Closing, (a) no representation or warranty, express or implied, whether written or oral,
as to the financial condition, results of operations, prospects, properties, or business of the Company or as to
the desirability or value of an investment in the Company has been made to the Investor by or on behalf of the
Company, except for those representations and warranties expressly set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement,
(a) the Investor has relied upon the Investor’s own independent appraisal and investigation and the advice of the
Investor’s own counsel, tax advisors, and other advisors regarding the risks of an investment in the Company,
and (c) the Investor will continue to bear sole responsibility for making its own independent evaluation and
monitoring of the risks of its investment in the Company.

(g) Accredited Investor. The Investor is either:

(1) an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D as
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act and,

in such case, shall submit to the Company such further assurances of such status as may be reasonably
requested by the Company; or

(i1) such Member’s Capital Contribution is less than or equal to ten percent
(10%) of the greater of such Member’s:

(A) Annual income or net worth, calculated as provided in the definition of “accredited investor” as defined in
Rule 501 of Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act;
or

(B) Revenue or net assets for the most recently completed fiscal year.

4. Binding Effect; Benefits. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors, heirs, executors,
and administrators of the parties hereto. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended or shall be
construed to give any Person other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors or permitted
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assigns any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or in respect of any agreement or any provision
contained herein.

5. Waiver. Any term or provision of this Agreement may be waived at any time by the party that is
entitled to the benefits thereof, but only in writing signed by such party. Except as provided in the preceding
sentence, no action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, any investigation by or on
behalf of any party, shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by the party taking such action of compliance with
any representations, warranties, covenants, or agreements contained herein. The waiver by any party hereto of
a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any preceding or
succeeding breach, and no failure by any party to exercise any right or privilege hereunder shall be deemed
a waiver of such party’s rights or privileges hereunder or shall be deemed a waiver of such party’s rights to
exercise the same at any subsequent time or times hereunder.

6. Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified, amended, altered, or supplemented except
upon the execution and delivery of a written agreement executed by the parties whose rights and/or obligations
hereunder are modified by such written agreement.

7. Assignability. Neither this Agreement, nor any right, remedy, obligation, or liability arising
hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable by the Investor without the prior written consent of the
Company.

8. Governing Law. All issues and questions concerning the application, construction, validity,
interpretation, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of Colorado, without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule
(whether of the State of Colorado or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of laws of any
jurisdiction other than those of the State of Colorado.

9. Enforcement. Each party agrees that the parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms
hereof.

10. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers, and other communications required or
permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to

have been duly given if (i) delivered personally, (ii) sent by next-day or overnight mail or delivery or (iii) sent by
e-mail, as follows:

If to the Company: EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Attention: Rodman Schley
7491 Kline Drive
Arvada CO 80005 Email:
rodman@gorodman.com

If to the Investor:

Attn: [NAME]
[ADDRESS]
[ADDRESS]
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All such notices, requests, demands, letters, waivers and other communications shall be deemed
to have been received (A) if by personal delivery, on the day delivered, (B) if by next-day or overnight mail or
delivery, on the day delivered, or (C) if by e-mail, on the day delivered.

11. Headings. The headings contained herein are for convenience and shall not control or affect the
meaning or interpretation of any provision hereof.

12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this
Agreement delivered by facsimile, email, Docusign, or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed
to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original copy of this Agreement.

13. Severability. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected thereby.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Operating Agreement, shall constitute the
entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall supersede all prior
agreements, arrangements, understandings, documents, instruments and communications, whether written or
oral, with respect to such subject matter.

15. Further Assurances. Subject to the terms and conditions provided herein, each party hereto
covenants and agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action, and to do,
or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper, or advisable, whether under applicable law or otherwise, in
order to consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereby executed this Agreement as of the date first above
written.

THE COMPANY:
EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC

By, EvolveX Capital, LLC, Manager By, Rodman
Schley, Member

THE INVESTOR:

[NAME]
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ESCROW AGREEMENT

This ESCROW AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated as of this , 2022 by and among EvolveX Equity
Fund, LLC, a Colorado corporation (the “Company”), having an address at 7491 Kline Drive, Arvada, CO
80005; Rialto Markets, LLLC, having an address at 42 Broadway, Ste 12-129, NY, NY 10004 (“Placement Agent”),
and WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (the “Escrow Agent”), with its principal corporate

trust office at 99 Wood Avenue South, 10t Floor, Iselin, NJ 08830. The Company and the Placement Agent, each
a “Party,” are collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually, a “Party.”

All capitalized terms not herein defined shall have the meaning ascribed to them in that certain Subscription
Agreement, dated as of or about , 2022, as amended or supplemented from time-to-time, including all

attachments, schedules and exhibits thereto (the “Subscription Agreement”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company proposes to sell (the “Financing Transaction”) a maximum of 50,000 shares
of our common stock, par value $1,000 (“Common Stock™), at an offering price of $1,000 per share (the “Shares™)
for an offering amount of $50,000,000; provided, a minimum of gross proceeds of $500,000 raised, in a public
offering (the “Offering”) to investors (each, an “Investor”); and

WHEREAS, subject to all conditions to closing being satisfied or waived, the closing(s) of the Offering
shall take place from time to time until the earlier of (a) the date which is one year after this Offering being
qualified by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC” or the “Commission”), or (b) the date on
which this Offering is earlier terminated by the Company in its sole discretion (the “Termination Date”) (the earlier
of (a) or (b), the “Final Termination Date”); and

WHEREAS, there is no minimum offering amount and all funds shall only be returned to the potential
Investors in the event the Offering is not consummated or if the Company, in its sole discretion, rejects all or a part
of a particular potential Investor’s subscription; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Financing Transaction contemplated by the Subscription Agreement,
the Company entered into a Placement Agent Agreement between the Company and the Placement Agent, and
certain other agreements, documents, instruments and certificates necessary to carry out the purposes thereof,
including without limitation the Subscription Agreement (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”); and

WHEREAS, the Company and Placement Agent desire to establish an escrow account with the Escrow
Agent into which the Company and Placement Agent shall instruct the Investors to deposit checks or make a
wire transfer for the payment of money made payable to the order of “WILMINGTON TRUST, N.A. as Escrow
Agent for EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Escrow,” and the Escrow Agent is willing to accept said checks and other
instruments for the payment of money in accordance with the terms hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the Company and Placement Agent represent and warrant to the Escrow Agent that they have
not stated to any individual or entity that the Escrow Agent’s duties will include anything other than those duties
stated in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, THE ISSUER AND THE PLACEMENT AGENT UNDERSTAND THAT THE
ESCROW AGENT, BY ACCEPTING THE APPOINMTMENT AND DESIGNATION AS ESCROW
AGENT HEREUNDER, IN NO WAY ENDORSES THE MERITS OF THE OFFERING OF THE
SECURITIES. THE ISSUER AND THE PLACEMENT AGENT AGREE TO NOTIFY ANY PERSON
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ACTING ON ITS BEHALF THAT THE ESCROW AGENT’S POSITION AS ESCROW AGENT DOES
NOT CONSTITUTE SUCH AN ENDORSEMENT, AND TO PROHIBIT SAID PERSONS FROM THE
USE OF THE ESCROW AGENT’S NAME AS AN ENDORSER OF SUCH OFFERING. The Issuer and the
Placement Agent further agree to include with any sales literature, in which the Escrow Agent’s name appears and
which is used in connection with such offering, a statement to the effect that the Escrow Agent in no way endorses
the merits of the offering; and

WHEREAS, the Company and Placement Agent represent and warrant to the Escrow Agent that a copy
of each document that has been delivered to the Investor and third parties that include Escrow Agent’s name and
duties, has been attached hereto as Schedule 1.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED as follows:

ARTICLE 1
ESCROW DEPOSIT
Section 1.1 Delivery of Escrow Funds.
(a) Placement Agent and the Company shall instruct the Investor to deliver to Escrow Agent checks

made payable to the order of “WILMINGTON TRUST, N.A. as Escrow Agent for EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC
Escrow”, or wire transfer to:

Wilmington Trust Company
ABA #:

A/C#:

A/C Name: Evolve X Escrow
Attn: Ellen Jean-Baptiste

International Wires:

M&T

Buffalo, New York

ABA:

SWIFT:

Beneficiary Bank: Wilmington Trust
Beneficiary ABA:

A/C#:

A/C Name: EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Escrow

All such checks and wire transfers remitted to the Escrow Agent shall be accompanied by information identifying
each Investor, subscription, the Investor’s social security or taxpayer identification number and address. In the
event the Investor’s address and/or social security number or taxpayer identification number are not provided to
Escrow Agent by the Investor, then Placement Agent and/or the Company agree to promptly upon request provide
Escrow Agent with such information in writing. The checks or wire transfers shall be deposited into a non interest-
bearing account at WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION entitled “WILMINGTON TRUST,
N.A. as Escrow Agent for EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC Escrow” (the “Escrow Account”).
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Checks should be mailed to the following address:

Wilmington Trust, N.A.

1100 North Market Street, 5% Floor
Wilmington, DE 19890
Attention: David A. Vanaskey Jr.

Investors can also send funds using credit or debit card by utilizing the Invoice and Pay® service offered by
M&T Bank by visiting the portal listed below:

https://www.sampleportal.mtb.com

(b) The collected funds deposited into the Escrow Account are referred to as the “Escrow Funds.”

(c)  The Escrow Agent shall have no duty or responsibility to enforce the collection or demand payment
of any funds deposited into the Escrow Account. If, for any reason, any check deposited into the Escrow Account
shall be returned unpaid to the Escrow Agent, the sole duty of the Escrow Agent shall be to return the check to the
Investor and advise the Company and Placement Agent promptly thereof.

(d)  All funds received by the Escrow Agent shall be held only in non-interest bearing bank accounts at
WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION.

(e) In the event that market conditions are such that negative interest applies to amounts deposited with the
Escrow Agent, the Company and Placement Agent [jointly and severally] shall be responsible for the payment of
such interest and the Escrow Agent shall be entitled to deduct from amounts on deposit with it an amount necessary
to pay such negative interest. For the avoidance of doubt, the indemnification protections afforded to the Escrow
Agent under Section 2.2 of this Agreement shall cover any interest-related expenses (including, but not limited to,
negative interest) incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder.

Section 1.2 Release of Escrow Funds. The Escrow Funds shall be paid by the Escrow Agent in accordance with
the following:

(a)  In the event that the Company advises the Escrow Agent in writing that the Offering has been
terminated (the “Termination Notice”), the Escrow Agent shall promptly return the funds paid by each Investor
to such Investor without interest or offset.
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(b) At each Closing, the Company and the Placement Agent shall provide the Escrow Agent with
written instructions regarding the disbursement of the Escrow Funds in accordance with Exhibit A attached hereto
and made a part hereof and signed by the Company and the Placement Agent (the “Disbursement Instructions”).

(©) If by 5:00 P.M. Eastern time on the Final Termination Date, the Escrow Agent has not received
written Disbursement Instructions from the Company and Placement Agent regarding the disbursement of the
Escrow Funds in the Escrow Account, if any, then the Escrow Agent shall promptly return such Escrow Funds, if
any, to the Investors without interest or offset. The Escrow Funds returned to the Investors shall be free and clear
of any and all claims of the Escrow Agent.

(d) The Escrow Agent shall not be required to pay any uncollected funds or any funds that are not
available for withdrawal.

(e) The Placement Agent or the Company will provide the Escrow Agent with the payment instructions
for each Investor, to whom the funds should be returned in accordance with this section.

® In the event that Escrow Agent makes any payment to any other party pursuant to this Escrow
Agreement and for any reason such payment (or any portion thereof) is required to be returned to the Escrow
Account or another party or is subsequently invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside and/or
required to be repaid to a receiver, trustee or other party under any bankruptcy or insolvency law, other federal or
state law, common law or equitable doctrine, then the recipient party shall repay to the Escrow Agent upon written
request the amount so paid to it.

(2) The Escrow Agent shall, in its sole discretion, comply with judgments or orders issued or process
entered by any court with respect to the Escrow Amount, including without limitation any attachment, levy or
garnishment, without any obligation to determine such court's jurisdiction in the matter and in accordance with its
normal business practices. If the Escrow Agent complies with any such judgment, order or process, then it shall not
be liable to any of the Parties or any other person by reason of such compliance, regardless of the final disposition
of any such judgment, order or process.

(h) Each Party understands and agrees that Escrow Agent shall have no obligation or duty to act upon
a written direction delivered to Escrow Agent for the disbursement of all or part of the Escrow Amount under this
Agreement (a “Written Direction”) if such Written Direction is not

(1) in writing,

(i1) signed by representatives of both Parties listed in Schedule II to this Agreement, in each case,
each such individual an “Authorized Representative” of such Party), and

(i11) delivered to, and able to be authenticated by, Escrow Agent in accordance with Section 1.4
below.

(i)  Upon request by any Party, the Escrow Agent set up each Party with on-line access to the account(s)
established pursuant to this Agreement, which each Party can use to view and verify transaction on such
account(s).

Copyright © 2022 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


https://www.secdatabase.com

() A Party may specify in a Written Direction whether such Escrow Amount shall be disbursed by way
of wire transfer or check. If the written notice for the disbursement of funds does not so specify the disbursement
means, Escrow Agent may disburse the Escrow Amount by wire transfer.

Section 1.3 Written Direction and Other Instruction.

(a) With respect to any Written Direction or any other notice, direction or other instruction required to
be delivered by a Party to Escrow Agent under this Agreement, Escrow Agent is authorized to follow and rely upon
any and all such instructions given to it from time to time if the Escrow Agent believes, in good faith, that such
instruction is genuine and to have been signed by an Authorized Representative of such Party. Escrow Agent shall
have no duty or obligation to verify that the person who sent such instruction is, in fact, a person duly authorized
to give instructions on behalf of a Party, other than to verify that the signature of the Authorized Representative on
any such instruction appears to be the signature of such person. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it is fully
informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting instructions to Escrow
Agent, and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting instructions other than the method selected by
such Party. Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility or liability for any loss which may result from (i) any action
taken or not taken by Escrow Agent in good faith reliance on any such signatures or instructions, (ii) as a result of
a Party’s reliance upon or use of any particular method of delivering instructions to Escrow Agent, including the
risk of interception of such instruction and misuse by third parties, or (iii) any officer or Authorized Representative
of a Party named in Exhibit B delivered hereunder prior to actual receipt by Escrow Agent of a more current
incumbency certificate or an updated Exhibit and a reasonable time for Escrow Agent to act upon such updated or
more current certificate or Exhibit .

(b) Each Party may, at any time, update Schedule II by signing and submitting to Escrow Agent an
update of such Schedule. Any updated Schedule shall not be effective unless Escrow Agent countersigns a copy
thereof. Escrow Agent shall be entitled to a reasonable time to act to implement any changes on an updated
Schedule II.

Section 1.4 Delivery and Authentication of Written Direction.

(a) A Written Direction must be delivered to Escrow Agent by one of the delivery methods set forth
in Section 4.3.

(b) Each Party and Escrow Agent hereby agree that the following security procedures will be used to
verify the authenticity of a Written Direction delivered by any Party to Escrow Agent under this Agreement:

(1) The Written Direction must include the name and signature of the person delivering the disbursement request
to Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent will check that the name and signature of the person identified on the Written
Direction appears to be the same as the name and signature of an Authorized Representative of such Party;

(i1) Escrow Agent will make a telephone call to an Authorized Representative of the Party purporting to deliver
the Written Direction (which Authorized Representative may be the same as the Authorized Representative who
delivered the Written Direction) at any telephone number for such Authorized Representative as set forth on
Exhibit A to obtain oral confirmation of delivery of the Written Direction. If the Written Direction is a joint
written notice of the Parties, the Escrow Agent shall call back an Authorized Representative of both of those
Parties; and

(i11) If the Written Direction is sent by email to Escrow Agent, Escrow Agent also shall review such email
address to verify that it appears to have been sent from an email address for an Authorized Representative of one
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of the Parties as set forth on Schedule 11, as applicable, or from an email address for a person authorized under
Schedule II to email a Written Direction to Escrow Agent on behalf of the Authorized Representative).

(©) Each Party acknowledges and agrees that given its particular circumstances, including the nature of
its business, the size, type and frequency of its instructions, transactions and files, internal procedures and systems,
the alternative security procedures offered by Escrow Agent and the security procedures in general use by other
customers and banks similarly situated, the security procedures set forth in this Section 1.4 are a commercially
reasonable method of verifying the authenticity of a payment order in a Written Direction.

(d) Escrow Agent is authorized to execute, and each Party expressly agrees to be bound by any
payment order in a Written Direction issued in its name (and associated funds transfer) (i) that is accepted by
Escrow Agent in accordance with the security procedures set forth in this Section 1.4 , whether or not authorized
by such Party and/or (ii) that is authorized by or on behalf of such Party or for which such Party is otherwise bound
under the law of agency, whether or not the security procedures set forth in this Section 1.4 were followed, and to
debit the Escrow Account for the amount of the payment order. Notwithstanding anything else, Escrow Agent shall
be deemed to have acted in good faith and without negligence, gross negligence or misconduct if Escrow Agent
is authorized to execute the payment order under this Section 1.4 . Any action taken by Escrow Agent pursuant to
this paragraph prior to Escrow Agent’s actual receipt and acknowledgement of a notice of revocation, cancellation
or amendment of a Written Direction shall not be affected by such notice.

(e) The security procedures set forth in this Section 1.4 are intended to verify the authenticity of
payment orders provided to Escrow Agent and are not designed to, and do not, detect errors in the transmission
or content of any payment order. Escrow Agent is not responsible for detecting an error in the payment order,
regardless of whether any of the Parties believes the error was apparent, and Escrow Agent is not liable for any
damages arising from any failure to detect an error.

® When instructed to credit or pay a party by both name and a unique numeric or alpha-numeric
identifier (e.g. ABA number or account number), Escrow Agent, and any other banks participating in the funds
transfer, may rely solely on the unique identifier, even if it identifies a party different than the party named. Each
Party agrees to be bound by the rules of any funds transfer network used in connection with any payment order
accepted by Escrow Agent hereunder.

(2) Escrow Agent shall not be obliged to make any payment requested under this Escrow Agreement
if it is unable to validate the authenticity of the request by the security procedures set forth in this Section 1.4 .
Escrow Agent’s inability to confirm a payment order may result in a delay or failure to act on that payment order.
Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, Escrow Agent shall not be required to treat a payment order as
having been received until Escrow Agent has authenticated it pursuant to the security procedures in this Section
2.3 and shall not be liable or responsible for any losses arising in relation to such delay or failure to act.

ARTICLE 2
PROVISIONS CONCERNING THE ESCROW AGENT

Section 2.1 Acceptance by Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent hereby accepts and agrees to perform its
obligations hereunder, provided that:

(a) The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely upon any order, judgment, opinion, or other writing
delivered to it in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement without being required to determine the
authenticity or the correctness of any fact stated therein or the propriety or validity of service thereof.
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(b) The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely on and shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted
to be taken by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the advice of counsel or other professionals retained or
consulted by the Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent shall be reimbursed as set forth in Section 2.2 for any and
all compensation (fees, expenses and other costs) paid and/or reimbursed to such counsel and/or professionals.
The Escrow Agent may perform any and all of its duties through its agents, representatives, attorneys, custodians,
and/or nominees and shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of such agents, representatives, attorneys,
custodians or nominees appointed with due care.

(©) In the event that the Escrow Agent shall be uncertain as to its duties or rights hereunder, the Escrow
Agent shall be entitled to (i) refrain from taking any action other than to keep safely the Escrow Funds until it shall
be directed otherwise by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) deliver the Escrow Funds to a court of competent
jurisdiction.

(d) The Escrow Agent shall have no duty, responsibility or obligation to interpret or enforce the terms
of any agreement other than Escrow Agent’s obligations hereunder, and the Escrow Agent shall not be required to
make a request that any monies be delivered to the Escrow Account The Escrow Agent makes no representation
as to the validity, value, genuineness or collectability of any security or other document or instrument held by or
delivered to it.

(e) The Escrow Agent shall be obligated to perform only such duties as are expressly set forth in this
Agreement. No implied covenants or obligations shall be inferred from this Agreement against the Escrow Agent,
nor shall the Escrow Agent be bound by the provisions of any agreement by the Company beyond the specific
terms hereof. Without limiting the foregoing, the Escrow Agent shall dispose of the Escrow Funds in accordance with
the express provisions of this Agreement, and has not reviewed and shall not make, be required to make or be liable
in any manner for its failure to make, any determination under any other document, or any other agreement.

(f)  No term or provision of this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall any such term or provision
be deemed to have created, any trust, joint venture, partnership, between or among the Escrow Agent and any of
the Parties.

Section 2.2. Indemnification. Placement Agent and the Company agree, jointly and severally, to indemnify
and hold the Escrow Agent and its employees, officers, directors and agents (the “Indemnified Parties”) the
“Indemnified Parties”) harmless from any and against all liabilities, losses, actions, suits or proceedings at law or in
equity, and any other expenses, fees or charges of any character or nature, (including, without limitation, negative
interest, attorney's fees and expenses and the costs of enforcement of this Escrow Agreement or any provision
thereof), which an Indemnified Party may incur or with which it may be threatened by reason of acting as or on
behalf of the Escrow Agent under this Escrow Agreement or arising out of the existence of the Escrow Account,
except to the extent the same shall be have been finally adjudicated to have been directly caused by the Escrow
Agent's gross negligence or willful misconduct. Placement Agent and the Company agree, jointly and severally, to
pay or reimburse the Escrow Agent upon request for any transfer taxes or other taxes relating to the Escrow Funds
incurred in connection herewith and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Escrow Agent with respect to any
amounts that it is obligated to pay in the way of such taxes. The terms of this paragraph shall survive termination
of this Agreement.

Section 2.3. Limitation of Liability. THE ESCROW AGENT SHALL NOT BE LIABLE, DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY, FOR ANY (I) DAMAGES, LOSSES OR EXPENSES ARISING OUT OF THE SERVICES
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PROVIDED HEREUNDER, OTHER THAN DAMAGES, LOSSES OR EXPENSES WHICH HAVE BEEN
FINALLY ADJUDICATED TO HAVE DIRECTLY RESULTED FROM THE ESCROW AGENT’S GROSS
NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, OR (II) SPECIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR LOSSES OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING WITHOUT
LIMITATION LOST PROFITS), EVEN IF THE ESCROW AGENT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES AND REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, OR
(IITy AMOUNT IN EXCESS OF THE ESCROW FUNDS.

Section 2.4. Resignation and Termination of the Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent may resign at any time by
giving 30 days’ prior written notice of such resignation to Placement Agent and the Company. Upon providing
such notice, the Escrow Agent shall have no further obligation hereunder except to hold as depositary the Escrow
Funds that it receives until the end of such 30-day period. In such event, the Escrow Agent shall not take
any action, other than receiving and depositing the Investor’s checks and wire transfers in accordance with this
Agreement, until the Company has designated a banking corporation, trust company, attorney or other person as
successor. Upon receipt of such written designation signed by Placement Agent and the Company, the Escrow
Agent shall promptly deliver the Escrow Funds to such successor and shall thereafter have no further obligations
hereunder. If the Company and Placement Agent have failed to appoint a successor escrow agent prior to the
expiration of thirty (30) days following the delivery of such notice of resignation or removal, the Escrow Agent
shall be entitled, at its sole discretion and at the expense of the Company and/or Placement Agent, to (a) return
the Escrow Funds to the Company, or (b) petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of
a successor escrow agent or for other appropriate relief, and any such resulting appointment shall be binding
upon the parties. In either case provided for in this paragraph, the Escrow Agent shall be relieved of all further
obligations and released from all liability thereafter arising with respect to the Escrow Funds.

Section 2.5 Termination. The Company and Placement Agent may terminate the appointment of the Escrow
Agent hereunder upon written notice specifying the date upon which such termination shall take effect, which date
shall be at least 30 days from the date of such notice. In the event of such termination, the Company and Placement
Agent shall, within 30 days of such notice, appoint a successor escrow agent and the Escrow Agent shall, upon
receipt of written instructions signed by the Company and Placement Agent, turn over to such successor escrow
agent all of the Escrow Funds Upon receipt of the Escrow Funds, the successor escrow agent shall become the
escrow agent hereunder and shall be bound by all of the provisions hereof and the Escrow Agent shall be relieved
of all further obligations and released from all liability thereafter arising with respect to the Escrow Funds and
under this Agreement. If the Company has failed to appoint a successor escrow agent prior to the expiration of
thirty (30) days following the delivery of the notice of termination, the Escrow Agent shall be entitled, at its sole
discretion and at the expense of the Company, to (a) return the Escrow Funds to the Company, or (b) petition any
court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor escrow agent or for other appropriate relief, and
any such resulting appointment shall be binding upon the parties.

Section 2.6 Compensation. Escrow Agent shall be entitled, for the duties to be performed by it hereunder, to
compensation as stated in the schedule attached hereto as Schedule III, which fee shall be paid by the Company
upon the signing of this Agreement. In addition, the Company shall be obligated to reimburse Escrow Agent
for all fees, costs and expenses incurred or that become due in connection with this Agreement or the Escrow
Account, including attorney’s fees. Neither the modification, cancellation, termination, resignation or rescission
of this Agreement nor the resignation or termination of the Escrow Agent shall affect the right of Escrow Agent
to retain the amount of any fee which has been paid, or to be reimbursed or paid any amount which has been
incurred or becomes due, prior to the effective date of any such modification, cancellation, termination, resignation
or rescission. To the extent the Escrow Agent has incurred any such expenses, or any such fee becomes due, prior
to any closing, the Escrow Agent shall advise the Company and the Company shall direct all such amounts to be
paid directly at any such closing. As security for the due and punctual performance of any and all of the Company’s
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obligations to the Escrow Agent hereunder, now or hereafter arising, the Company, hereby pledges, assigns and
grants to the Escrow Agent a continuing security interest in, and a lien on and right of setoff against, the Escrow
Funds and all distributions thereon, investments thereof or additions thereto. If any fees, expenses or costs incurred
by, or any obligations owed to, the Escrow Agent hereunder are not promptly paid when due, the Escrow Agent
may reimburse itself therefor from the Escrow Funds, and may sell, convey or otherwise dispose of any Escrow
Funds for such purpose. The security interest and setoff rights of the Escrow Agent shall at all times be valid,
perfected and enforceable by the Escrow Agent against the Parties and all third parties in accordance with the
terms of this Escrow Agreement. The terms of this paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement.

Section 2.7. Merger or Consolidation. Any corporation or association into which the Escrow Agent may be
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer all or substantially
all of its corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or association
resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which the Escrow Agent is a party,
shall be and become the successor escrow agent under this Agreement and shall have and succeed to the rights,
powers, duties, immunities and privileges as its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or
paper or the performance of any further act.

Section 2.8. Attachment of Escrow Funds: Compliance with Legal Orders. In the event that any Escrow
Amount shall be attached, garnished or levied upon by any court order, or the delivery thereof shall be stayed or

enjoined by an order of a court, or any order, judgment or decree shall be made or entered by any court order
affecting the Escrow Funds , the Escrow Agent is hereby expressly authorized, in its sole discretion, to respond
as it deems appropriate or to comply with all writs, orders or decrees so entered or issued, or which it is advised
by legal counsel of its own choosing is binding upon it, whether with or without jurisdiction. In the event that
the Escrow Agent obeys or complies with any such writ, order or decree it shall not be liable to any Party or to
any other person, firm or corporation, should, by reason of such compliance notwithstanding, such writ, order or
decree be subsequently reversed, modified, annulled, set aside or vacated.

Section 2.9 Force Majeure. The Escrow Agent shall not be responsible or liable for any failure or delay
in the performance of its obligation under this Agreement arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by
circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including, without limitation, acts of God; earthquakes; fire; flood;
wars; acts of terrorism; civil or military disturbances; sabotage; epidemic; pandemics; riots; interruptions, loss or
malfunctions of utilities, computer (hardware or software) or communications services; accidents; labor disputes;
acts of civil or military authority or governmental action; hacking, cyber-attacks or other unauthorized infiltration
of Escrow Agent’s information technology infrastructure it being understood that the Escrow Agent shall use
commercially reasonable efforts which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume
performance as soon as reasonably practicable under the circumstances.

Section 2.10 No Financial Obligation. Escrow Agent shall not be required to use its own funds in the performance
of any of its obligations or duties or the exercise of any of its rights or powers, and shall not be required to take
any action which, in Escrow Agent's sole and absolute judgment, could involve it in expense or liability unless
furnished with security and indemnity which it deems, in its sole and absolute discretion, to be satisfactory.

ARTICLE 3
MISCELLANEOUS
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Section 3.1. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of each Party
and the Escrow Agent and their respective successors and permitted assigns. No other persons shall have any rights
under this Agreement. No assignment of the interest of any of the Parties shall be binding unless and until written
notice of such assignment shall be delivered to the other Parties and Escrow Agent and shall require the prior
written consent of the other Parties and Escrow Agent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld).

Section 3.2. Escheat. Each Party is aware that under applicable state law, property which is presumed abandoned
may under certain circumstances escheat to the applicable state. The Escrow Agent shall have no liability to any
of the Parties, their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, or any other party, should any or
all of the Escrow Funds escheat by operation of law.

Section 3.3. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications required under this Escrow
Agreement shall be in writing, in English, and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered (i) personally,
(i1) by facsimile transmission with written confirmation of receipt, (iii) by overnight delivery with a reputable
national overnight delivery service, (iv) by mail or by certified mail, return receipt requested, and postage prepaid,
or (v) by electronic transmission; including by way of e-mail (as long as such email is accompanied by a PDF
or similar version of the relevant document bearing the signature of an Authorized Representative for the Party
sending the notice) with email confirmation of receipt. If any notice is mailed, it shall be deemed given five
business days after the date such notice is deposited in the United States mail. If notice is given to a party, it shall
be given at the address for such party set forth below. It shall be the responsibility of the Company to notify the
Escrow Agent in writing of any name or address changes. In the case of communications delivered to the Escrow
Agent, such communications shall be deemed to have been given on the date received by the Escrow Agent. :

If to Placement Agent:

Rialto Markets, LLC
Name Ryan Simmons
Title Head of Operations
Company Rialto Markets LLC
Address 42 Broadway, Ste 12-129, NY, NY 1004
Telephone # (917) 279-7453
Email Address ryan@rialtomarkets.com

If to the Company:

Name Rodman Schley

Title CEO

Company EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC

Address 7491 Kline Drive, Arvada, CO 80005
Telephone # 720-739-3009

Email Address rodman@evolve-x.com
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If to Escrow Agent:

WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

99 Wood Avenue South, 10™ Floor

Iselin, NJ 08830

Attention: Ellen Jean-Baptiste

Phone: (212) 941-4425

Email: ejean-baptiste@wilmingtontrust.com

Section 3.4. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Delaware. Each Party and Escrow Agent hereby consents to the exclusive personal
jurisdiction of the courts located in the State of Delaware in the event of a dispute arising out of or under this
Agreement. Each Party and Escrow Agent hereby irrevocably waives any objection to the laying of the venue
of any suit, action or proceeding and irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court in such suit,
action or proceeding.

Section 3.5. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Exhibits attached hereto (as updated from time to time
in accordance herewith) set forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties related to the Escrow
Amount. If a court of competent jurisdiction declares a provision invalid, it will be ineffective only to the extent
of the invalidity, so that the remainder of the provision and Escrow Agreement will continue in full force and
effect.

Section 3.6. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended, modified, superseded, rescinded, or canceled only
by a written instrument executed by each of the Parties and the Escrow Agent.

Section 3.7. Waivers. The failure of any party to this Agreement at any time or times to require performance of any
provision under this Agreement shall in no manner affect the right at a later time to enforce the same performance.
A waiver by any party to this Agreement of any such condition or breach of any term, covenant, representation,
or warranty contained in this Agreement, in any one or more instances, shall neither be construed as a further or
continuing waiver of any such condition or breach nor a waiver of any other condition or breach of any other term,
covenant, representation, or warranty contained in this Agreement.

Section 3.8. Headings. Section headings of this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only
and shall in no way restrict or otherwise modify any of the terms or provisions of this Escrow Agreement.

Section 3.9. Electronic Signatures; Facsimile Signatures; Counterparts. This Escrow Agreement may be
executed in one or more counterparts. Such execution of counterparts may occur by manual signature, electronic
signature, facsimile signature, manual signature transmitted by means of facsimile transmission or manual
signature contained in an imaged document attached to an email transmission, and any such execution that is not
by manual signature shall have the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as a manual signature. Each such
counterpart executed in accordance with the foregoing shall be deemed an original, with all such counterparts
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together constituting one and the same instrument. The exchange of executed copies of this Escrow Agreement or
of executed signature pages to this Escrow Agreement by electronic transmission, facsimile transmission or as an
imaged document attached to an email transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery hereof. Any
copy of this Escrow Agreement which is fully executed and transmitted in accordance with the terms hereof may
be used for all purposes in lieu of a manually executed copy of this Escrow Agreement and shall have the same
legal effect, validity and enforceability as if executed by manual signature.

Section 3.10. Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO AND THE ESCROW AGENT
EXPRESSLY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN RESOLVING ANY CLAIM OR
COUNTERCLAIM RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Section 3.11 Termination. This Agreement will terminate upon the Final Termination Date.

Section 3.12 Anti-Terrorism/Anti-Money L.aundering Laws.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEW ACCOUNT - To help
the United States government fight the funding of terrorism or money laundering activities, Federal law requires all
financial institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each person who opens a new account.
What this means for the parties to this Agreement: the Escrow Agent will ask for your name, address, date of birth,
and other information that will allow the Escrow Agent to identify you (e.g., your social security number or tax
identification number.) The Escrow Agent may also ask to see your driver’s license or other identifying documents
(e.g., passport, evidence of formation of corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership, etc., certificate
of good standing.)

[The balance of this page intentionally left blank — signature page follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first set forth above.

EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC(Company) Rialto Markets Inc. (Placement Agent)

By: By:
Name: Rodman Schley Name: Ryan Simmons
Title: CEO Title: Head of Operations

WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
as Escrow Agent
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By:
Name: Ellen Jean-Baptiste
Title: Assistant Vice President

Schedule 1
Form 1 a

EXHIBIT B

CERTIFICATE AS TO AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES

OF EVOLVEX EQUITY FUND, LLC/ RIALTO MARKETS LLC

Medical 21, Inc./Rialto Markets LLC hereby designates each of the following persons as its Authorized
Representative for purposes of this Agreement, and confirms that the title, contact information and specimen
signature of each such person as set forth below is true and correct. Each such Authorized Representative is
authorized to initiate and approve transactions of all types for the Escrow Account[s] established under the
Agreement to which this Exhibit A is attached, on behalf of Medical 21, Inc./Rialto Markets LLC.

Name (print): Rodman Schley
Specimen Signature:
Title: CEO

Telephone Number (required): Office: 720-739-3009

If more than one, list all applicable telephone
numbers.

Cell:

E-mail (required):

If more than one, list all applicable email Email 1: rodman@evolve-x.com

addresses. SiE
Name (print):
Specimen Signature:
Title:
Telephone Number (required):

) . Office:
If more than one, list all applicable telephone Cell:

numbers.
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E-mail (required): .
. . . Email 1:

If more than one, list all applicable email .
Email 2:

addresses.

Name (print):

Specimen Signature:

Title:

Telephone Number (required):

. . Office:

If more than one, list all applicable telephone Cell:

numbers. '

E-mail (required): ' ' ' Email -

If more than one, list all applicable email .
Email 2:

addresses.

Additional Email Addresses:

The following additional email addresses also may be used by Escrow Agent to verify the email address used to
send any Payment Notice to Escrow Agent:

Email 1:

Email 2:

Email 3:

COMPLETE BELOW TO UPDATE EXHIBIT A

If Company wishes to update this Exhibit A, Company must complete, sign and send to Escrow Agent an updated
copy of this Exhibit A with such changes. Any updated Exhibit A shall be effective once signed by Company and
Escrow Agent and shall entirely supersede and replace any prior Exhibit A to this Agreement.

[ ]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (as Escrow Agent)

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

Schedule 111
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Fees of Escrow Agent

Acceptance Fee: Waived

Initial Fees as they relate to Wilmington Trust acting in the capacity of Escrow Agent — includes review of the
Escrow Agreement; acceptance of the Escrow appointment; setting up of Escrow Account(s) and accounting
records; and coordination of receipt of Escrow Information for deposit to the Escrow Account(s). Acceptance Fee
payable at time of Escrow Agreement execution.

Escrow Agent Administration Fee: $8,000/year
For ordinary administrative services by Escrow Agent — includes daily routine account management; monitoring

claim notices pursuant to the agreement; and disbursement of Escrow Information in accordance with the
agreement.

Wilmington Trust’s bid is based on the following assumptions:

e Number of Escrow Accounts to be established: 1
e Est. Term: Under 12 months
e Escrow funds remain un-invested

Out-of-Pocket pre-approved Expenses: Billed At Cost

Exhibit A

FORM OF ESCROW DISBURSEMENT INSTRUCTIONS
AND RELEASE NOTICE

Date:

WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

99 Wood Avenue South, 10 Floor
Iselin, NJ 08830
Attention: Ellen Jean-Baptiste

Dear Mr./Ms
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In accordance with the terms of Section 1.2 of the Escrow Agreement dated as of 140 of April, 2022 (the "Escrow
Agreement"), by and between EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC (the “Company”), Rialto Markets, LLC (“Placement
Agent”) and WILMINGTON TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (the "Escrow Agent"), the Company and
Placement Agent hereby direct the Escrow Agent to distribute all of the Escrow Funds (as defined in the Escrow
Agreement) in accordance with the following wire instructions:

Very truly yours,
Company
By:

Name:
Title:

Placement Agent

By:
Name:
Title:
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We consent to the use, in this Offering Circular on Form 1-A of our independent auditor’s report dated March 9,
2022, with respect to the audited balance sheet of EvolveX Equity Fund, LLC. as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the period from June 9, 2021
to December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Very truly yours,

ASSUARANCE DIMENSIONS

/s/ Assurance Dimensions

Tampa, Florida
May 3, 2022
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